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VISION OF TBC BANK

THE MISSION OF TBC BANK IS TO ENSURE A HIGH LEVEL OF THE MISSION OF TBC BANK IS TO ENSURE A HIGH LEVEL OF 

CLIENT SATISFACTION AND A SUSTAINABLE INCREASE IN THE CLIENT SATISFACTION AND A SUSTAINABLE INCREASE IN THE 

COMPANY’S VALUE.COMPANY’S VALUE.

misia da xedvamisia da xedva

MISSION AND VISIONMISSION AND VISION

Tibisi bankis xedva

Tibisi bankis misiaa uzrunvelyos klientebis Tibisi bankis misiaa uzrunvelyos klientebis 

kmayofilebis maRali done da kompaniis Rirebulebis kmayofilebis maRali done da kompaniis Rirebulebis 

stabiluri zrdastabiluri zrda

 Tibisi banki lideri kompaniaa regionSi. igi gamoirCeva klientebze 

gansakuTrebuli zrunviT, mudmivi novatorobiTa da ganviTarebisaken 

swrafviT;

 bankis warmatebas ganapirobebs kargad ganviTarebuli da mravalfero-

vani momsaxurebis arxebi, efeqturi gayidvebis sistemebi, momsaxurebis 

xarisxi;

 banki cnobilia, rogorc yvelaze sasurveli damqiravebeli qveyanaSi. 

uqmnis saukeTeso garemos Sedegze orientirebul da iniciativian pro-

fesionalebs. gansakuTrebiT afasebs gunduri moRvaweobis principebs;

 banki zrunavs erovnuli kulturuli faseulobebis SenarCunebasa da 

gaZlierebaze, riTac damatebiTi wvlili Seaqvs sazogadoebis ganviTa-

rebaSi.

 TBC Bank is a leading company in the region. It is distinguished by outstanding 
client services, constant innovations and aspiration to develop further.

 The success of the Bank is thanks to well developed and diverse service channels, 
eff ective sales systems and the high quality of its services.

 The Bank is known for its outstanding treatment of its employees. It creates an ideal 
environment for result-oriented and motivated professionals and places high value 
on the principles of teamwork.

 The Bank works towards ensuring the preservation and strengthening of national 
cultural values, thus additionally contributing to the development of society.    
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bankis menejmentibankis menejmenti

BANK MANAGEMENTBANK MANAGEMENT
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vano baliaSvili vice-prezidenti
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Mamuka Khazaradze (Chairman)
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David Khazaradze 
Giorgi Kekelidze
Bob Meijer
Douglas Gustafson (IFC)
Steff en Suhany (DEG)
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Nino Masurashvili Vice President
Giorgi Bedineishvili Vice President



Tibisi bankiTibisi banki wliuri angarwliuri angariSi i 200720078

bankis istoriabankis istoria

BANK HISTORYBANK HISTORY

17 dekembers dafuZnda saaqcio sazogadoeba “Tibisi banki”.

maisSi Tibisi banks mieniWa saerTaSoriso operaciebis warmoebis licenzia.

ivnisSi Catarda pirveli saerTaSoriso auditoruli Semowmeba “Coopers & 
Lybrand”-is mier.

agvistoSi TACIS-sa da Tibisi banks Soris gaformda pirveli sakredito xel-

Sekruleba. 

dekemberSi Tibisi bankma daiwyo mcire da saSualo biznesis dafinanseba. 

gaixsna evropis rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis bankis (EBRD) pirveli 

sakredito xazi _ 3 milioni aSS dolari.

TebervalSi gaixsna msoflio bankis sakredito xazi _ 1 milioni aSS dola-

ri.

TebervalSi gaixsna saerTaSoriso safinanso korporaciis (IFC) sakredito 

xazi _ 3 milioni aSS dolari, romelic kvlav mimarTuli iyo mcire da saSua-

lo biznesis dafinansebaze.

17 marts Tibisi banksa da EBRD-s Soris gaformda xelSekruleba saqarTvelo-

Si “akreditivebis xelSemwyobi proeqtis” ganxorcielebis Taobaze, 2 milioni 

aSS dolaris odenobiT. proeqti exmareboda saqarTveloSi vaWrobis ganviTa-

rebas da axali komerciuli kontaqtebis Camoyalibebas.

16 aprils gaixsna germaniis investiciebisa da ganviTarebis kompaniis (DEG) 

sakredito xazi _ 3 milioni germanuli marka, romelic mcire da saSualo 

biznesis ganviTarebas moxmarda.

17 agvistos EBRD-is “akreditivebis xelSemwyobi proeqtis” Tanxa gaizarda 2 

milioni aSS dolariT. amasTan, EBRD garantorad daudga Tibisi banks pirve-

li klasis bankebis winaSe. 

maisSi Tibisi bankma monawileoba miiRo `saqarTvelos mikrosafinanso bankis~ 

(dRevandeli “prokreditbanki”) dafuZnebaSi. 

2 Tebervals germaniis investiciebisa da ganviTarebis kompaniis (DEG) mier 

Tibisi bankisTvis moxda meore  sakredito xazis _ 2 milioni evros gamoyo-

fa.

26 maiss saerTaSoriso safinanso korporacia (IFC) da germaniis investicie-

bisa da ganviTarebis kompania (DEG)  Tibisi bankis aqciebis 10-10 procentis 

mflobelni gaxdnen.

seqtemberSi Thomson Financial Bankwatch-ma Tibisi banks saerTaSoriso reitin-

gi mianiWa. es iyo qarTuli kompaniisaTvis saerTaSoriso reitingis miniWebis 

pirveli SemTxveva.

8 maiss Tibisi bankma monawileoba miiRo saqarTvelos sapensio sadazRvevo 

holdingis (GPI holdingi) dafuZnebaSi. GPI holdingi pirveli sadazRvevo kom-

paniaa saqarTveloSi, romelmac momxmarebels sapensio dazRveva SesTavaza. 
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The joint stock company TBC Bank was founded on 17 December.

In May, TBC Bank was granted a license to carry out international tran-
sactions.

In June, Coopers and Lybrand conducted the fi rst international audit of 
the bank.

In August, TACIS and TBC Bank signed the fi rst credit agreement.

In December, TBC Bank launched a funding programme for small and 
medium-sized business. A USD 3m credit line from the European Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) was opened.

In February, another credit line was established through a World Bank 
contribution of USD 1m.

In February, the International Finance Corporation (IFC) allocated a cre-
dit line worth USD 3m, which was again directed at fi nancing small and 
medium-sized enterprises (SME).

On 17 March, EBRD deepened its cooperation with TBC Bank through sig-
ning an agreement on the Letter of Credit Support Project, worth USD 
2m. The project was aimed at supporting the development of commerce 
and the establishment of new commercial contacts in Georgia.

On 16 April, the German Investment and Development Company (DEG) 
allocated a credit line of 3 million German marks for SME development.

On 17 August, the volume of EBRD’s Letter of Credit Support Project in-
creased by USD 2m. In addition, EBRD became a guarantor of TBC Bank 
before fi rst class banks.

In May, TBC Bank participated as a founder of the Microfi nance Bank of
Georgia, which is now known as ProCredit Bank.

On 2 February, a second DEG credit line for EURO 2m was opened at TBC 
Bank.

On 26 May, IFC and DEG became TBC Bank shareholders, each with a 10% 
stake.

In September, Thompson Financial’s BankWatch awarded TBC Bank an 
international rating. TBC Bank was the fi rst Georgian company to receive 
this honour.
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bankis istoriabankis istoria

BANK HISTORYBANK HISTORY

2001 

2002

2003

2004

2005

16 agvistos gaixsna saerTaSoriso safinanso korporaciis (IFC) sakredito 

xazi _ 3 milioni dolari. am sakredito xazis farglebSi Tibisi bankma ipo-

Tekuri dakreditebis programa gaafarTova.

martidan Tibisi banki, finansuri maCveneblebis mixedviT, saqarTveloSi yve-

laze msxvili banki gaxda.

13 ivniss gamomcemloba “Georgian Times”-isa da marketinguli kvlevebis kom-

pania “gorbis” mier Tibisi banki 2001 wlis saukeTeso qarTul kompaniad da-

saxelda.

3 seqtembers Tibisi banki Financial Times Group-is Jurnal “The Banker”-is yo-

velwliur sabanko reitingSi msoflios “wlis saukeTeso bankebs” Soris da-

saxelda.

dekemberSi Tibisi banks evrogaerTianebis forumis (EuroMarket  Forum-2002) 

premia mianiWa.

9 seqtembers Tibisi banki Financial Times Group-is Jurnal “The Banker”-is yovel-

wliur sabanko reitingSi msoflios “wlis saukeTeso bankebs” Soris meored 

dasaxelda.

5 dekembers Tibisi banksa da saerTaSoriso safinanso korporacias (IFC) Soris 

gaformda xelSekruleba riskebis dazRvevis Taobaze _ 2 milioni evro da 3 

milioni dolari. 

19 dekembers Tibisi banksa da EBRD-s Soris gaformda xelSekruleba 6 mi-

lioni aSS dolaris odenobis sakredito xazis gamoyofis Taobaze. es iyo 

pirveli investicia saqarTvelos biznes seqtorSi 2003 wlis “vardebis revo-

luciis” Semdeg.

ianvridan funqcionireba daiwyo kompania “Tibisi lizingma”, romelic Tibisi 

bankma daafuZna. saqmianobis dawyebidan 1 wlis Tavze “Tibisi lizingma” sa-

qarTvelos salizingo bazarze seriozuli poziciis dakaveba SeZlo.

martSi amerikulma Jurnalma “Global Finance” Tibisi banki savaluto operacie-

bis bazarze moqmed msoflios saukeTeso bankebs Soris daasaxela.

7 seqtembers londonSi Financial Times Group-is yovelwliuri sabanko reitin-

gis Sedegebi gamocxadda, sadac msoflios ~wlis saukeTeso bankebs” Soris 

zedized ukve mesamed dasaxelda Tibisi banki.

ianvarSi saerTaSoriso safinanso korporaciam (IFC) Tibisi banks 4 milioni 

aSS dolaris odenobis subordinirebuli sesxi gamouyo. es iyo saqarTvelo-

Si saerTaSoriso institutis mier komerciuli bankisaTvis subordinirebu-

li sesxis gamoyofis pirveli precedenti.

26 Tebervals gaixsna Tibisi bankis axali saTavo ofisi. igi ganTavsda me-20 

saukunis dasawyisSi TbilisSi aSenebul unikalur SenobaSi, romelic qalaqis 

arqiteqturul Zeglebs ganekuTvneba. Senobis rekonstruqciaze bankma 6 mi-

lioni aSS dolari gaiRo.
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On 8 May, TBC Bank participated in the foundation of Georgian Pension 
and Insurance Holding (GPI Holding), the fi rst insurance company in 
Georgia off ering pension services.

On 16 August, IFC allocated a further credit line of USD 3m, allowing TBC 
to expand its mortgage lending programme.

In March, TBC Bank became the largest bank in Georgia according to va-
rious fi nancial indicators.

On 13 June, TBC Bank was nominated as the best Georgian company 
of 2001 by the Georgian Times newspaper and the Marketing Research 
Company GORBI.

On 3 September, Financial Times magazine named TBC Bank among the 
world’s “Best Banks of the Year”.
In December, the 2002 Euromarket Forum Prize was awarded to TBC.

On 9 September, Financial Times magazine included TBC Bank in the list 
of “Best Banks of the Year” for the second consecutive year.

On 5 December, an agreement on risk insurance worth EURO 2 million 
and USD 3 million was signed with the IFC.  

On 19 December, the EBRD allocated a USD 6 million credit line, marking 
the fi rst investment in the Georgian commercial sector after the Rose Re-
volution in November 2003.

In January, the company TBC Leasing, founded by TBC Bank, began ope-
rations. In just a year, it was able to stake out a substantial share of the 
Georgian market.

In March, the American magazine Global Finance named TBC Bank as one 
of the best banks worldwide operating on the foreign exchange market.

On 7 September, TBC was included for the third year in a row on the Fi-
nancial Times’ annual list of “Best Banks of the Year”.

In January, the International Finance Corporation (IFC) granted a USD 4m 
subordinated loan to TBC, the fi rst of its kind by an international institu-
tion to a Georgian commercial bank.

On 26 February TBC Bank’s new Head Offi  ce was opened in a unique his-
torical building constructed in Tbilisi in the beginning of the 20th century 
that is recognized as one of the city’s architectural monuments. TBC Bank 
spent USD 6m on reconstructing and refurbishing the building. 

2003

2004

2005

2001

2002
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27 ivliss IFC-m 3 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis sakredito xazi gauxsna kom-

pania “Tibisi lizings”. es IFC-is pirveli investiciaa saqarTvelos salizingo 

seqtorSi. 

seqtemberSi Financial Times Group-ma yovelwliuri sabanko reitingSi msoflios 

~wlis saukeTeso bankebs” Soris ukve meoTxed daasaxela Tibisi banki.

26 seqtembers Tibisi bankma da evropis rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis 

bankma (EBRD) xeli moaweres xelSekrulebas mcire da saSualo biznesis da-

finansebis programaze. saxelSekrulebo Tanxa 10 milion aSS dolars Sead-

genda.

oqtomberSi amerikulma Jurnalma “Global Finance” Tibisi banki savaluto ope-

raciebis bazarze moqmed msoflios saukeTeso bankebs Soris ukve meored 

daasaxela.

7 noembers saerTaSoriso sareitingo saagentom FitchRatings Tibisi bankis gr-

Zelvadiani reitingi “CCC+”-dan “B-“ donemde gaaumjobesa, xolo moklevadia-

ni reitingi _ “C”-dan “B“ donemde. grZelvadian perspeqtivaSi bankis zrda 

Sefasda, rogorc “stabiluri”.

TebervalSi germaniis investiciebisa da ganviTarebis kompaniam (DEG) Tibisi 

banks 10 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis subordinirebuli sesxi gamouyo, 

romlis investirebac Tibisi bankis kapitalSi ganxorcielda. 

1 marts evropis rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis bankma (EBRD) salizingo 

kompania ~Tibisi lizingis” aqciaTa 10% SeiZina. amave dros, 3 milioni aSS 

dolaris odenobis sesxi gamouyo “Tibisi lizings”, rac EBRD-is pirveli in-

vesticiaa saqarTvelos salizingo seqtorSi. 

aprilSi amerikulma Jurnalma “Global Finance” Tavis periodul sabanko rei-

tingSi “msoflios ganviTarebadi bazrebis saukeTeso bankebi” Tibisi banki 

kvlav daasaxela, rogorc saukeTeso banki saqarTveloSi.

1 maiss Tibisi bankma da msoflio bankis saerTaSoriso safinanso korpora-

ciam (IFC) gaaformes xelSekruleba teqnikuri daxmarebis proeqtis ganxor-

cielebis Sesaxeb. proeqtis mizani iyo Tibisi bankis poziciebis gaZliereba 

fizikuri pirebis segmentze.

maisSi Tibisi bankma da “siTibankma” xeli moaweres xelSekrulebas arauzrun-

velyofili sesxis _ 35 mln aSS dolaris gamoyofis Taobaze. es iyo yvelaze 

didi moculobis sakredito xazi manamde ucxouri komerciuli bankebis mier 

qarTuli bankebisTvis micemul sesxebs Soris. 

ivlisSi evropis rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis bankma (EBRD) Tibisi banks 

15 milioni dolaris odenobis sakredito xazi gamouyo, romelic saqarTve-

loSi ipoTekuri sesxebis gacemas moxmarda.

28 agvistos saerTaSoriso sareitingo saagentom FitchRatings grZelvadian 

perspeqtivaSi Tibisi bankis zrdis Sefaseba ~stabiluridan” ~pozitiuramde” 

gaaumjobesa.

2005

2006

bankis istoriabankis istoria

BANK HISTORYBANK HISTORY
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On 27 July the IFC made its fi rst investment in the Georgian leasing sector 
by granting a credit line of USD 3m to TBC Leasing. 

In September, in its annual bank rating, the Financial Times Group inclu-
ded TBC Bank among the world’s “Best Banks of the Year” for the fourth 
time.

On 26 September the European Bank for Reconstruction and Develop-
ment (EBRD) signed a USD 10m agreement on fi nancing SMEs.

In October, the American magazine Global Finance named TBC Bank one 
of the best banks worldwide operating on the foreign exchange market 
for the second time. 

On 7 November, the international rating agency FitchRatings raised TBC 
Bank’s long-term rating from “CCC+” to “B-” while its short-term rating 
improved from “C” to “B”. The bank’s long-term growth was assessed as 
“stable.”

In February, DEG allocated a USD 10m subordinated loan, which was in-
vested in TBC Bank’s equity.

On 1 March, EBRD purchased 10% of TBC Leasing’s shares and allocated a 
USD 3m loan, marking the fi rst EBRD investment in the Georgian leasing 
sector.

In April, the American magazine Global Finance, in its annual bank rating 
“The Best Banks of Developing Markets of the World” praised TBC Bank as 
“the Best Bank in Georgia”.

On 1 May TBC Bank and the IFC concluded an agreement on the imple-
mentation of a technical assistance project whose goal was to increase 
TBC’s share of the retail sales market.

In May, TBC Bank and City Bank concluded an agreement on the alloca-
tion of an unsecured loan in the amount of USD 35m, the largest credit 
line ever provided by a foreign commercial bank to a Georgian bank.

In July, EBRD provided TBC Bank with a USD 15m credit line intended for 
mortgage lending in Georgia.

On 28 August, the international rating agency FitchRatings revised its 
outlook for TBC Bank from “Stable” to “Positive”.

In November, the Netherlands Development Financial Company (FMO) 
and TBC Bank signed an agreement on the allocation of a USD 10m credit 
line over a 5-year term.

In December, the international organization Business Initiative Directions 
awarded TBC Bank with a Gold Star, a distinction of international quality. 

2005

2006
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noemberSi niderlandebis ganviTarebis safinanso kompania FMO-sa da Tibi-

si banks Soris gaformda xuTwliani xelSekruleba 10 milioni aSS dolaris 

odenobis sakredito xazis gamoyofis Taobaze. 

dekemberSi saerTaSoriso organizaciam Business Initiative Directions Tibisi banki 

xarisxis saerTaSoriso jildoTi Gold Star daajildova.

saerTaSoriso sareitingo saagento Moody’s-ma Tibisi banks pirvelad mianiWa 

sakredito reitingi Semdegi kategoriiT: B3 ucxouri valutis da Baa3 ad-

gilobrivi valutis grZelvadiani sakredito reitingebi, rac warmoadgenda 

qveynis masStabiT miRwevad yvelaze maRal Sefasebas.

TebervalSi Tibisi bankma saqarTveloSi erT-erTi wamyvani umaRlesi saswavle-

blis, ESM-Tbilisis aqciaTa 20% SeiZina. 

martSi Tibisi banks msoflioSi xarisxis yvelaze avtoritetuli standarti,  

ISO 9001:2000 moTxovnebTan Sesabamisobis sertifikati mieniWa. 

martSi amerikulma Jurnalma “Global Finance” “msoflios ganviTarebadi bazre-

bis saukeTeso bankebis” reitingSi Tibisi banki kvlav daasaxela, rogorc 

saukeTeso banki saqarTveloSi. 

ivlisSi saerTaSoriso sareitingo saagentom FitchRatings Tibisi bankis rei-

tingi 2 safexuriT gaaumjobesa da ~B+~ kategoria mianiWa. 

maisSi saerTaSoriso saagentom Moody’s, Tibisi banks reitingi mianiWa Semdegi 

kategoriebSi: Sefaseba _ stabiluri, sabanko depozitebi _ ucxour valutaSi 

_ B3/NP, sabanko depozitebi _ erovnul valutaSi  Ba1/NP, bankis finansuri 

mdgradoba _ D-.

30 seqtembers Tibisi bankis aqtivebma 1 miliard aSS dolars gadaaWarba, rac 

9 TveSi bankis aqtivebis 80%-ian zrdas niSnavs.

Semodgomaze Tibisi banki saqarTvelos farglebs gareT gavida da regionu-

li ganviTarebis mimarTulebiT pirveli proeqti warmatebiT ganaxorciela _ 

Tibisi bankma azerbaijanSi adgilobrivi sakredito institutis, “soa kredi-

tis” aqciaTa 75% SeiZina.

dekemberSi Tibisi bankma daiwyo adgilobrivi bazrisTvis sruliad axali 

tipis sabanko filialebis danergva, romelic msoflios Tanamedrove stan-

dartebis mixedviT Seiqmna. proeqti saerTaSoriso sakonsultacio kompania 

“senteos” mxardaWeriT ganxorcielda.

2006
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For the fi rst time the Moody’s Investors Service agency gave TBC long-
term credit ratings of B3 and Baa3 for foreign currency and local currency 
respectively. Thus far, this is the highest rating achieved by any Georgian 
bank.

In February TBC Bank bought 20% of shares of one of the leading educa-
tional institutions in Georgia – the European School of Management in 
Tbilisi.

In March TBC Bank was awarded the most authoritative quality standard in 
the world – Certifi cate of Conformity with Requirements ISO 9001:2000.

In March, the American magazine “Global Finance” named TBC Bank in 
the rating of “The Best Banks of Emerging Markets of the World” and ca-
lled it “the Best Bank in Georgia”. 

In May, the international agency Moody’s gave TBC Bank the following ra-
tings for 2007: appraisal – stable, bank deposits in foreign currency – B3/
NP, bank deposits in national currency – Ba1/NP, bank’s fi nancial stability 
– D-. 

In July, International Rating Agency FitcRating increased the rating of TBC 
Bank by two levels and awarded it a “B+” rating. 

On 30 September, TBC Bank’s assets exceeded 1bn USD, which means an 
80 per cent increase in the Bank’s assets over the previous nine months.  

In autumn TBC Bank went beyond Georgia’s borders and successfully im-
plemented its fi rst project directed towards regional development – TBC 
Bank bought 75 per cent of shares of Azerbaijan’s SOA Credit.  

In December TBC Bank began introducing an absolutely new type of 
bank branch offi  ces for the local market, which were created in accordan-
ce with modern international standards. The project was implemented 
with the support of the International Consulting Company CENTEO.

2006

2007
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sameTvalyureo sabWos Tavmjdomaris mimarTvasameTvalyureo sabWos Tavmjdomaris mimarTva

SPEECH OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD CHAIRMANSPEECH OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD CHAIRMAN

warmatebis miRweva da biznesSi wamyvani poziciebis dakaveba TavisTavad 

rTuli amocanaa. magram es jer kidev ar aris yvelaferi. mTavari sirTule 

swored mas Semdeg iwyeba, rodesac kompania miaRwevs am warmatebas da axali 

amocanis winaSe dadgeba _ SeinarCunos miRweuli poziciebi da dinamiurad 

ganagrZos ganviTareba, yvela etapze ipovos axali SesaZleblobebi da erTi 

wamiTac ar SeCerdes; rac mTavaria, am yvelafris paralelurad, SeinarCu-

nos sufTa reputacia da ganamtkicos momxmarebelTa ndoba.

gasul wels Tibisi banki bevrad ufro rTuli amocanis winaSe dadga _ Cvens 

kompanias am miznebis miRweva mouwia arnaxulad didi zrdis fonze. SarSan 

Tibisi banki orjer gaizarda rogorc finansuri maCveneblebis, ise TanamS-

romelTa raodenobis mixedviT. 

am kolosaluri zrdis pirobebSi, Tibisi bankma SeZlo bazarze Tavisi po-

ziciebis ganmtkiceba da, amavdroulad, bevri strategiuli mniSvnelobis 

warmatebis miRweva.

maTgan sam, yvelaze mniSvnelovan movlenas gamovyof: Tibisi bankis axal 

strategiaze gadasvla, saqarTvelosTvis sruliad inovaciuri, ultraTa-

namedrove tipis sabanko filialebis qselis Seqmna da Tibisi bankis gasvla 

qveynis farglebs gareT.

me da Cemi gundi siamayiT warmogidgenT 2007 wels Cveni erToblivi muSao-

bis Sedegebs. yvela miRweva da finansuri Sedegi, romelsac winamdebare an-

gariSSi gaecnobiT, aTasobiT adamianis Sromis Sedegia da aTeul aTasobiT 

adamianis _ Cveni momxmareblebis, partniorebis da, maTTan erTad, Cveni 

TanamSromlebis _ keTildReobas emsaxureba.

mamuka xazaraZe
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Achieving success in business and becoming a leader in one’s fi eld 
is a tall order. But it’s not everything. The main challenge comes af-
ter a company achieves this success – it must retain its leading posi-
tion and continue developing dynamically, fi nd new opportunities 
at each stage, not stop even for a second and, most importantly of 
all, maintain a reputation of reliability and the trust of its clients. 

Last year TBC Bank strove to achieve these objectives against the 
background of unprecedented progress. Last year TBC Bank do-
ubled in terms of both fi nancial parameters and number of person-
nel.   

In the context of such colossal growth, TBC Bank managed to 
strengthen its positions and, at the same time, achieve a number of 
strategically important successes. 

The three most important events at TBC over the past year were:  
the shift to a new strategy, the opening of ultra-modern branch 
offi  ces the likes of which are completely new to Georgia and expan-
ding our business beyond the borders of the country.

It is with pride that my team and I present the fruits of the bank’s 
activities during 2007 in the form of this report. It outlines all the 
fi nancial and other achievements made thanks to the eff orts of 
thousands of people. These achievements serve to ensure the well-
being of tens of thousands of people - our customers and partners 
and, last but not least, our employees. 

MAMUKA KHAZARADZE

sameTvalyureo sabWos Tavmjdomaris mimarTva
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2007 weli Tibisi bankisaTvis warmatebuli da saetapo iyo bevri Tvalsazri-

siT. Sevecdebi, mokled mimovixilo Cveni kompaniis ZiriTadi miRwevebi ra-

mdenime mimarTulebiT:

2007 wlis ganmavlobaSi Tibisi banki Zalian dinamiurad gaizarda yvela Zi-

riTadi finansuri maCveneblis mixedviT. kerZod, gasul wels bankis aqti-

vebi 78.3%-iT gaizarda da 1 miliard 712 milion lars miaRwia. 1 miliard 

129 milion laramde gaizarda sakredito portfeli, rac wina welTan Se-

darebiT 96.6%-ian zrdas niSnavs. rac Seexeba anabrebis portfels, igi 2006 

welTan SedarebiT 41.2%-iT gaizarda da 780 milion lars miaRwia. wlis 

bolos Tibisi bankis mogebam 28 milion lars gadaaWarba. 

gasul wels Tibisi bankma Tavis strategiaSi cvlileba Seitana da fizikuri 

pirebis bazarze aqtiuri ganviTareba daiwyo. 

strategiis amgvarma cvlilebam saWiro gaxada Tibisi bankis rebrendingi. 

SemuSavda bankis axali brendbuqi, romelic Zveli korporatiuli stilis 

evoluciis Sedegad Seiqmna. Seiqmna Tibisi bankis axali korporatiuli slo-

gani: Cven vaZlierebT erTmaneTs.

rac mTavaria, axali strategia gulisxmobda mokle droSi filialebis, ser-

vis-centrebisa da bankomatebis qselis mniSvnelovan gafarToebas, agreTve 

bankis mier sul ufro mravalferovani momsaxurebebis SeTavazebas fiziku-

ri pirebisaTvis da arsebuli servisebis pirobebis mkveTr gaumjobeseba-

gamartivebas. 

paralelurad, Tibisi bankma warmatebiT SeinarCuna da gaaZliera Tavisi 

poziciebi korporatiuli klientebis bazarze.

axali strategiis farglebSi, 2007 wels Tibisi bankis erT-erTi umniSvne-

lovanesi proeqti iyo sruliad axali tipis ultraTanamedrove filiale-

bis qselis Seqmnis dawyeba _ es siaxle iyo qarTuli bazrisTvisac, vinaidan 

aseTi tipis filialebi saqarTveloSi manamde ar arsebobda. proeqti saer-

TaSoriso sakonsultacio kompania Senteo International-is daxmarebiT ganxor-

cielda. 

axal filialebSi momsaxureba xdeba barierebis gareSe, gaxsnil sivrceSi. es 

filialebi pirdapir gamoxataven slogans “Cem gverdiT Cemi bankia”: klien-

ti da bankis TanamSromeli gverdigverd dganan da erTad iReben gadawyve-

tilebas. 

finansuri Sedegebi

axali strategia da 
ultraTanamedrove 

filialebi
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During 2007 TBC Bank grew very dynamically according to all basic fi nancial pa-
rameters. In particular, the assets of the Bank during the last year increased 78.3% 
and reached 1,712m GEL. Its credit portfolio increased up to 1,129m GEL, which 
amounts to 96.6% growth over the previous year. As for the deposit portfolio, it 
increased by 41.2% as compared with the previous year and totalled 780m GEL. 
The profi t of TBC Bank exceeded 28m GEL by the end of the year.

 Last year TBC Bank made changes in its strategy and began actively developing 
the services it off ers to individuals.  

It was this change of strategy that conditioned the decision to rebrand TBC Bank. A 
new logo was developed which represents an evolution of sorts over the old one.  
A new corporate slogan has also been developed: Together we are stronger . 

Most importantly, the new strategy implied a signifi cant increase in the number 
of branch offi  ces, service-centres and ATMs, as well as off ering of more and more 
diverse services to natural persons and greatly improving and simplifying existing 
services.

In parallel, TBC Bank successfully maintained and strengthened its positions on the 
market of corporate clients.

Within this new strategy, one of the most important projects of TBC Bank in 2007 
was the establishment of a network of ultra-modern branch offi  ces of a kind that 
heretofore did not exist in Georgia. The project was implemented with the support 
of the International Consulting Company Senteo International. 

Service at the new branch offi  ces is rendered without barriers, in an open space. 
These branch offi  ces directly express the slogan: “My bank is by my side”, as the 
client and the bank employee stand side by side and take decisions together.  
 
We consider that one of the most signifi cant achievements was TBC Bank’s fi rst 
project towards regional expansion, namely our successful entrance into the Azer-
baijani market. Last year TBC Bank acquired 75% of shares of the local credit institu-
tion SOA Credit, which is a daughter company of Azerbaijan’s Shorebank.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT

NEW STRATEGY AND 

ULTRA-MODERN BRANCH 

OFFICES 

The year 2007 was a success and a breakthrough year for number of reasons. Let 
me briefl y review the company’s achievements in several areas:
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2007 wlis seriozul miRwevad migvaCnia Tibisi bankis pirveli proeqti re-

gionaluri ganviTarebis  mimarTulebiT _ azerbaijanis bazarze warmate-

buli Sesvla. SarSan Tibisi bankma azerbaijanSi adgilobrivi sakredito 

institutis, “soa kreditis” aqciaTa 75% SeiZina. ~soa-krediti” “Sorbankis” 

Svilobili kompaniaa azerbaijanSi.

regionaluri ganviTareba logikuri gagrZelebaa im warmatebuli moRvawe-

obisa, romelsac Tibisi banki Sida bazarze axorcielebs. momdevno etapze, 

azerbaijanis bazarze miRebuli gamocdileba warmatebiT iqneba gamoyene-

buli Tibisi bankis mier dsT-s sivrceSi sxva qveynebis finansur bazrebze 

investirebis procesSi.

Tibisi bankis strategiuli ganviTarebis TvalsazrisiT, gasuli wlis umniS-

vnelovanesi movlena iyo Tibisis sainvesticio bankis daarseba. 

es axali mimarTuleba gulisxmobs iuridiuli da fizikuri pirebisTvis 

srulyofili finansuri servisis SeTavazebiT, maTi biznesisa da piradi ka-

pitalis gafarToebas. 

Tibisis sainvesticio bankis mizania gaxdes bazris wamyvani moTamaSe da xeli 

Seuwyos klientebis kapitalis zrdasa da ganviTarebas rogorc adgilobri-

vi, ise saerTaSoriso masStabiT. 

SarSandeli weli Tibisi bankisaTvis warmatebuli iyo saerTaSoriso aRia-

rebebis TvalsazrisiTac. gazafxulze saerTaSoriso sareitingo saagentom 

FitchRatings Tibisi bankis reitingi 2 safexuriT gaaumjobesa da ~B+“ kate-

goria mianiWa. 

mogvianebiT, saerTaSoriso saagentom Moody’s Tibisi banks mianiWa reitingi 

da misi Sefaseba gansazRvra, rogorc stabiluri.

paralelurad, Cvenma kompaniam seriozul saerTaSoriso aRiarebas miaRwia 

momsaxurebis xarisxis kuTxiT _ 2007 wlis martSi xarisxis marTvis sisteme-

bSi msoflio liderebma SAI GLOBAL da saerTaSoriso sertificirebis qsel-

ma IQNet Tibisi banks xarisxis marTvis sistemis saerTaSoriso standartis 

ISO 9001 : 2000 sertifikati mianiWes.

amiT Tibisi banki gaxda pirveli banki saqarTveloSi, romelmac ISO_s stan-

darti miiRo. Tibisi bankis marTvis sistemebis xarisxi Sefasda, rogorc 

msoflios umaRlesi standartebis Sesabamisi. 

Tibisi bankis saerTaSoriso avtoritetsa da ndobaze miuTiTebs is faqti, 

rom gasuli wlis ganmavlobaSi Cvenma bankma ucxouri safinanso institute-

bidan 245 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis finansuri resursi moizida. 

Cveni gundi darwmunebulia, rom gasuli wlis miRwevebi da ganxorcielebu-

li siaxleebi mniSvnelovan rols Seasrulebs Tibisi bankis mTavari miznis 

SesrulebaSi _ iyos regionis lideri kompania, romelic gamoirCeva klien-

tebze zrunviT, inovaciurobiTa da dinamiuri ganviTarebiT.

sainvesticio banki

saerTaSoriso aRiarebebi

bankis prezidentis mimarTvabankis prezidentis mimarTva

SPEECH OF THE BANK PRESIDENTSPEECH OF THE BANK PRESIDENT

regionaluri ganviTareba

vaxtang bucxrikiZe
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Regional development is a logical continuation of the successful activities imple-
mented by TBC Bank on the domestic market. At the next stage, the experience 
obtained on the Azerbaijani market will be used successfully in the process of TBC 
Bank’s investment in the fi nancial markets of other CIS countries. 

The establishment of TBC Investment Bank was a signifi cant event from the stan-
dpoint of the bank’s strategic development. 

This new endeavour implies expanding the business and personal capital of legal 
entities and individuals through off ering comprehensive fi nancial services. 

 The objective of TBC Investment Bank is to become a leading player of the market 
and facilitate the increase and development of clients’ capital locally, as well as 
internationally. 

The last year was successful for TBC Bank from the standpoint of international re-
cognition as well. In the spring the FitchRatings International Rating Agency raised 
the rating of TBC Bank by two levels, up to B+.

Later, Moody’s International Agency evaluated TBC Bank as stable.   

In parallel, our Company is winning serious recognition in terms of quality of servi-
ce. In March 2007, SAI GLOBAL and the International Certifying Network IQNet the 
world’s leaders in quality management systems, awarded TBC Bank ISO 9001 : 2000 
certifi cate of international quality management standard. 

Thus TBC Bank became the fi rst bank in Georgia to obtain the ISO standard. The 
quality of management systems of TBC Bank was evaluated as conforming to the 
highest world standards. 

The fact that out bank attracted 245m USD in fi nancial resources from foreign fi -
nancial institutions during the last year indicates TBC Bank’s international authority 
and reliability.  

Our team believes that the achievements of the last year and the innovations in-
troduced will play a signifi cant role in realizing the main objective of TBC Bank – be 
leading company of the region, known for taking care of its clients, delivering new 
products and developing dynamically.

 INTERNATIONAL RECOGNITION

REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT

INVESTMENT BANK

Vakhtang Butskhrikidze

bankis prezidentis mimarTva
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finansuri Sedegebifinansuri Sedegebi
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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finansuri Sedegebifinansuri Sedegebi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tibisi bankis wili bazarze 
aqtivebis mixedviT

Tibisi bankis wili bazarze 
sakredito portfelis 

mixedviT

Tibisi bankis wili bazarze 
depozitebis mixedviT

TBC BANK SHARE IN  

THE MARKET 

BY ACCETS 

TBC BANK SHARE IN  

THE MARKET 

BY CREDIT PORTFOLIO

TBC BANK SHARE IN  

THE MARKET 

BY DEPOSITS

TBC BANK
Tibisi banki

OTHER BANKS
sxva bankebi

23.7%

76.3%

TBC BANK
Tibisi banki

OTHER BANKS
sxva bankebi

25.6%

74.4%

TBC BANK
Tibisi banki

OTHER BANKS
sxva bankebi

24.2%

75.8%
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mTliani kapitali 
da aqtivebi

levereji
(saSualo aqtivebi / saSualo kapitali)

aqtivebis struqtura

TOTAL EQUITY & 

TOTAL ASSETS

LEVERAGE

(Average assets / Average equity)

ASSETS STRUCTURE

20072006200520042003200220012000

TOTAL ASSETS
mTliani aqtivebi

TOTAL ASSETS
mTliani aqtivebi

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
mTliani kapitali

20072006200520042003200220012000

5,7 5,6

6,2
5,9 6,1 6,1

7,1

6,2

wminda mogeba kapitalze ROE 13,1
wminda mogeba aqtivebze ROA 2,1
leverejis koeficienti LEVERAGE 6,2

wminda mogeba kapitalze ROE 13,1
wminda mogeba aqtivebze ROA 2,1
leverejis koeficienti LEVERAGE 6,2

GOVERNMENT TREASURY BILLS
saxelmwifo fasiani qaRaldebi

EQUITY INVESTMENTS
investiciebi

sawesdebo kapitalSi

OTHER ASSETS
sxva aqtivebi

CASH AND DUE
FROM NATIONAL BANK OF GEORGIA
naRdi fuli da fuladi

saxsrebi erovnul bankSi

 7%

11%

4%

0%

DUE FROM OTHER BANKS
moTxovnebi sxva bankebis mimarT

 5%

TOTAL LOANS OUTSTANDING 
sakredito portfeli

66%

FIXED AASETS AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ZiriTadi saSualebebi

da aramaterialuri aqtivebi

7%
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valdebulebebis struqtura

likviduroba

depozitebis dinamika

LIABILITIES STRUCTURE

LIQUIDITY

DEPOSITS DYNAMICS

TOTAL BORROWINGS
mTliani nasesxebi saxsrebi

CURRENT AND
SAVING DEPOSITS

moTxovnamde angariSebi

TIME DEPOSITS
vadiani depozitebi 43%

23%

32%

OTHER LIABILITIES 
sxva valdebulebebi

2%

20072006200520042003200220012000

38%

32%

42%
41%

43%

34%

30%

20%

TOTAL LIABILITIES
mTliani valdebulebebi

TOTAL LIABILITIES
mTliani valdebulebebi

LIQUID ASSETS / TOTAL LIABILITIES
likviduri aqtivebi / mTliani valdebulebebi 

LIQUID ASSETS
likviduri aqtivebi

20072006200520042003200220012000

CORPORATE
korporatiuli

CORPORATE
korporatiuli

RETAIL
fizikuri pirebi

finansuri Sedegebifinansuri Sedegebi

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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saprocento Semosavlebisa da 
xarjebis dinamika

mTliani Semosavlebis 
struqtura

mTliani xarjebis 
struqtura

TREND OF INTEREST INCOME 

AND EXPENSES

TOTAL INCOME STRUCTURE

TOTAL EXPENSES 

STRUCTURE

20072006200520042003200220012000

INTEREST INCOME
saprocento Semosavali

INTEREST INCOME
saprocento Semosavali

INTEREST EXPENSES
saprocento xarjebi

INTEREST INCOME
saprocento Semosavali

NET FEE&COMMISSION INCOME
wminda sakomisio Semosavali

84%
11%

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
sxva saoperacio Semosavlebi

5%

INTEREST EXPENSES
saprocento xarjebi

PERSONNEL EXPENSES
personalis xarjebi

DEPRECIATION EXPENSES
cveTisa da amortizaciis xarjebi

OTHER PROVISION (REVERSAL)
sxva aqtivebis rezervi

 47%

-1%
4%

20%

LOAN LOSS PROVISIONS
sesxis SesaZlo

danakargebis rezervis xarji

15%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
sxva administraciuli da

saoperacio xarjebi

15%
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saerTaSoriso miRwevebisaerTaSoriso miRwevebi

INTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTSINTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS
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saerTaSoriso miRwevebisaerTaSoriso miRwevebi

INTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTSINTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Tibisi banki azerbaijanul bazarze Sevida

2007 wlis Semodgomaze Tibisi banki saqarTvelos farglebs gareT gavida 

da regionaluri ganviTareba daiwyo. pirveli proeqti am mimarTulebiT 

warmatebiT Sedga _ Tibisi bankma azerbaijanSi adgilobrivi sakredito 

institutis, “soa kreditis” aqciaTa 75% SeiZina. soa-krediti aSS-s qalaq 

CikagoSi dafuZnebuli “Sorbankis” Svilobili kompaniaa azerbaijanSi.

regionalur ganviTarebaze zrunva Tibisi bankma Sida bazarze miRweuli 

warmatebebis paralelurad daiwyo. pirvel etapze SerCeul iqna azerbai-

janis, rogorc saqarTvelos strategiuli partniori qveynis, finansuri 

bazari, romelic xasiaTdeba stabiluri zrdis tendenciiT. 

Tibisi banki uaxloes momavalSi ~soa-kredits” seriozul finansur ins-

titutad Camoayalibebs, romelic azerbaijanSi adgilobriv momxmarebels 

SesTavazebs farTo speqtris sabanko momsaxurebas.

momdevno etapze, azerbaijanis bazarze miRebuli gamocdileba warmate-

biT iqneba gamoyenebuli Tibisi bankis mier dsT-s sivrceSi sxva qveynebis 

finansur bazrebze investirebis procesSi.

FitchRatings-ma Tibisi bankis reitingi  “B+”-mde gaaumjobesa 

2007 wlis ivlisSi saerTaSoriso sareitingo saagentom FitchRatings Tibisi 

bankis reitingi 2 safexuriT gaaumjobesa da ~B+” kategoria mianiWa. 

sareitingo saagentos eqspertTa gancxadebiT, Tibisi banki ganmsazRvrel 

rols asrulebs qarTuli sabanko sistemis ganviTarebaSi. aseTi maRali Se-

faseba ki erTmniSvnelovnad miuTiTebs, rogorc Tibisi bankis saoperacio 

garemosa da  dafinansebis parametrebis gaumjobesebaze, aseve mTlianad 

saqarTvelos sabanko seqtoris ganviTarebis mzard tendenciaze. 

FitchRatings-ma Tibisi bankis reitingi gaaumjobesa Semdeg kategoriebSi:

 

 grZelvadiani reitingi gaumjobesda ,,B-“-dan  ,,B+“-mde; 

 mxardaWeris reitingi gaumjobesda ~5”-dan ~4’’-mde; 

 moklevadiani reitingi _ ”B”; 
 individualuri reitingi _ ”D”; 

saerTaSoriso saagentos Moody’s Sefaseba

2007 wlis maisSi, saerTaSoriso saagentom Moody’s, Tibisi banks mianiWa rei-

tingi Semdeg kategoriebSi:

 Sefaseba _ stabiluri

 sabanko depozitebi _ ucxour valutaSi  B3/NP
 sabanko depozitebi _ erovnul valutaSi  Ba1/NP
 bankis finansuri mdgradoba _ D-

regionaluri ganviTareba

saerTaSoriso reitingebi
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT

INTERNATIONAL RATINGS

TBC Bank Entered Azerbaijanian Market 

In the autumn 2007 TBC left Georgian borders and began regional development. 
The beginning of the fi rst project in this direction was successful – TBC Bank 
bought 75% of shares of the local credit institution – “SOA Credit” in Azerbaijan. 
“SOA Credit” it the daughter company in Azerbaijan of “ShoreBank” established 
in Chicago, USA. 

TBC began to care for regional development in parallel with progress achieved on 
local market. On the fi rst stage fi nancial market of Azerbaijan, as strategic part-
ner of Georgia, was chosen, which is characterized by sustainable development 
trend. 

In the nearest future TBC Bank will form “SOA Credit” as a serious fi nancial insti-
tution, which will off er wide spectrum of banking services to the local customers 
in Azerbaijan. 

On the next stage the experience obtained on Azerbaijanian market will be suc-
cessfully implemented by TBC Bank in CIS in the process of investing in fi nancial 
markets of other countries.

FitchRatings Upgraded the Rating of TBC Bank up to “B+” 

In July 2007, The international Rating Agency FitchRatings raised TBC Bank’s ra-
ting by two  levels and granted  ,,B+” category.

The experts of the Rating Agency stated that TBC Bank has signifi cant  function in 
the development of local banking sector. Such high evaluation directly refl ects the 
gradually improving operating environment and fi nancing parameters of TBC Bank, 
as well as the growth tendency of the Georgian banking sector development. 

FitchRatings upgraded TBC Bank’s rating in the following categories:

 Long-term rating raised from ,,B-“ to ,,B+”
 Support rating raised from ,,5’’ to ,,4’’
 Short-term rating – “B”
 Individual rating – “D” 

Evaluation by International Agency Moodey’s

In May 2007 Moody’s Corporation assigned TBC Bank the following ratings in the 
following categories:

 Evaluation - Stable
 Bank Deposits – Foreign Currency B3/NP
 Bank Deposits – National Currency Ba1/NP
 Bank’s Financial Strength - D-
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saerTaSoriso miRwevebisaerTaSoriso miRwevebi

INTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTSINTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Tibisi banki _ pirveli qarTuli banki, romelsac ISO-s xarisxis sertifikati 

mieniWa

2007 wlis 27 marts Tibisi banks msoflioSi xarisxis yvelaze avtoritetu-

li standarti mieniWa _ xarisxis marTvis sistemebSi msoflio liderebma SAI 
GLOBAL da saerTaSoriso sertificirebis qselma IQNet Tibisi banks xarisxis 

marTvis sistemis saerTaSoriso standartis ISO 9001 : 2000 moTxovnebTan 

Sesabamisobis sertifikati mianiWes.

Tibisi banki pirveli bankia saqarTveloSi, romelmac ISO-s standarti mii-

Ro. es niSnavs, rom Tibisi bankis marTvis sistemebis xarisxi Sefasda, ro-

gorc msoflios umaRlesi standartebis Sesabamisi. 

Jurnalma Global Finance Tibisi banki saqarTveloSi saukeTeso bankad daa-

saxela

2007 wlis martSi amerikulma Jurnalma “Global Finance” “msoflios ganvi-

Tarebadi bazrebis saukeTeso bankebis” reitingSi Tibisi banki daasaxela, 

rogorc saukeTeso banki saqarTveloSi. 

“Global Finance”-is mier 2004, 2005, 2006 da 2007 wels, zedized oTxjer Tibisi 

banki dasaxelda, rogorc saukeTeso qarTuli banki saxazino da savaluto 

gacvliTi operaciebis warmoebaSi. garda amisa, 2005, 2006 da 2007 wels Ti-

bisi bankis warmatebis masStabi mniSvnelovnad gaizarda da igi 3-jer moxvda 

aziis regionis 19 saukeTeso bankis reitingSi, rogorc “saukeTeso banki 

saqarTveloSi”. 

Tibisi bankma 2007 wlis ganmavlobaSi ucxouri safinanso institutebidan 245 

milioni aSS dolaris odenobis finansuri resursi moizida: 

aprili _ Tibisi bankma 47 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis resursi moizida 

msoflioSi erT-erTi umsxvilesi bankis “jei pi morganis” (JP Morgan) daxma-

rebiT.

ivnisi _ ~meril linCma” (Merrill Lynch) 40 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis in-

vesticia ganaxorciela Tibisi bankSi. 

ivlisi _ niderlandebis ganviTarebis finansurma kompaniam (FMO) Tibisi banks 

20 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis subordinirebuli sesxi gamouyo. amave 

TveSi Tibisi bankma meore kontraqtic gaaforma _ Sveicariulma korpora-

ciam Credit-Suisse Tibisi banks 35 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis finansuri 

resursi gamouyo. es iyo Credit-Suisse-is pirveli investicia saqarTveloSi.  

agvisto _ Tibisi bankma msoflio wamyvani sainvesticio bankis, doiCe bankis 

(Deutsche Bank) daxmarebiT 54 milioni aSS dolaris odenobis sindicirebuli 

sesxi miiRo msoflios sxvadasxva qveynis 14 wamyvani bankidan.   

noemberi _ Tibisi bankma evropis rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis ban-

kisagan (EBRD) 49 milioni aSS dolari miiRo. aqedan 19 milioni aSS dola-

ri warmoadgens sindicirebul sesxs; 20 milioni aSS dolari gankuTvnilia 

vaWrobis sferos dafinansebisTvis, xolo 10 milioni aSS dolari _ energo-

efeqturobis proeqtebis dafinansebisTvis.

saerTaSoriso aRiarebebi

moziduli finansuri 
resursebi
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INTERNATIONAL RECOGNITIONS

ATTRACTED FINANCIAL 

RESOURCES

TBC Bank is the First Bank to be Awarded ISO Quality Certifi cate 

In March 2007 TBC Bank was awarded the most authoritative quality standard in 
the world – the worldwide leaders in quality management systems SAI GLOBAL 
and International Certifi cation Network IQNet awarded to TBC Bank the Certifi -
cate of Conformity with the requirements of International Standard of Quality 
Management System - ISO 9001 : 2000. 
 
TBC Bank is the fi rst bank in Georgia who obtained ISO Certifi cate. It means that 
the system of management of TBC Bank was evaluated as that conforming to 
highest world standards. 

The Magazine Global Finance Nominated TBC Bank as the Best Bank in Geor-

gia 

In March 2007 American magazine “Global Finance” nominated TBC Bank as the 
best bank in Georgia in the “Rating of the Best Banks in Emerging Markets of the 
World”. 

“Global Finance” nominated TBC Bank as the best Georgian bank in performance 
of treasury and currency exchange operations four times one after another – in 
2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Besides, in 2005, 2006 and 2007 the scale of progress 
of TBC Bank signifi cantly increased and it was included for three times in the ra-
ting of the 19 best banks of Asian region, as the “Best Bank in Georgia”. 

During 2007 TBC Bank attracted fi nancial resources in the amount of 245 mln 

USD from foreign fi nancial institutions:

April - TBC Bank attracted resources in the amount of 47 mln USD with the su-
pport of one of the largest banks of the world – “JP MORGAN”; the purposefulness 
of the loan is not limited and it was directed mainly towards the implementation 
of corporative goals. 

June – Merrill Lynch made investments in TBC Bank in the amount of 40 mln 
USD. 

July – Financial Company of Development of the Netherlands (FMO) allocated 
subordinated loan in the amount of 20 mln USD to TBC Bank. The same month, 
TBC Bank formalized the other contract – Swiss Corporations Credit-Suisse alloca-
ted to TBC Bank fi nancial resources in the amount of 35 mln USD. It was the fi rst 
investment made by Credit-Suisse in Georgia.  

August – TBC Bank obtained syndicated loan in the amount of 54 mln USD from 
14 leading banks from various countries of the world with the support of the 
leading investment bank of the world – Deutsche Bank. 

November – TBC Bank obtained 49 mln USD from European Bank for Reconstruc-
tion and Development (EBRD). 19 mln USD from that amount represents syndi-
cated loan; 20 mln USD is destined for fi nancing of trade sphere, and 10 mln USD 
– for fi nancing of energy-effi  ciency projects.
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fizikuri pirebis momsaxurebafizikuri pirebis momsaxureba

RETAIL BANKINGRETAIL BANKING
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axali produqtebiaxali produqtebi

NEW PRODUCTSNEW PRODUCTS

2007 weli Tibisi bankisTvis warmatebuli iyo axali produqtebis danergvis 

TvalsazrisiT. bankis momsaxurebebis meniu gafarTovda da klientebis mo-

Txovnebze metad morgebuli gaxda.

kerZod, Tibisi bankis mier momxmareblisaTvis moxda Semdegi axali produ-

qtebis SeTavazeba:

Tibisi bankma klientebisaTvis gasul wels ganaviTara kidev erTi distan-

ciuri servisi _ 2007 wlis maisSi muSaoba daiwyo 24-saaTianma satelefono 

servisma. 

telefon bankis momsaxureba xelmisawvdomia 24 saaTis ganmavlobaSi, mTeli 

kviris manZilze. telefon bankis saSualebiT momxmarebels saSualeba aqvs 

miiRos sabanko momsaxurebasTan dakavSirebuli nebismieri tipis informacia. 

fizikur pirebs agreTve SeuZliaT telefoniT ganaxorcielon mTeli rigi 

operaciebi, magaliTad: gadaricxvebi, gadaixadon komunaluri gadasaxadebi, 

gaxsnan anabrebi, dafaron sesxi, SeukveTon plastikuri baraTebi da a.S.

telefon bankiT sargeblobisaTvis klientisaTvis sakmarisia bankSi mxolod 

erTxel mosvla satelefono momsaxurebisaTvis piradi kodis misaRebad.

Tibisi bankis satelefono centri TveSi 140,000-ze met zars emsaxureba. amas-

Tan, telefon bankis servisiT 2007 wlis bolosTvis sargeblobda 35,000-ze 

meti klienti.

Tu momxmarebels hyavs Zveli manqana da surs misi axliT Secvla, magram amis-

Tvis ar gaaCnia sakmarisi danazogi, Tibisi bankma aseTi saWiroebisTvis Seqmna 

specialuri produqti “gadajeqi axal manqanaSi”. am momsaxurebis saSualebiT 

klients SesaZlebloba eZleva iyidos axali manqana mTlianad bankis sesxiT 

da Semdeg auCqareblad izrunos Zvelis gayidvaze, sesxis aRebidan 4 Tvis 

ganmavlobaSi.

uZravi qonebis bazris swrafi tempebiT ganviTarebas Tibisi banki gamoexmaura 

ipoTekuri sesxebis pirobebis mniSvnelovani gaumjobesebiT da erTdroulad 

ramdenime siaxlis danergviT. 

kerZod, ipoTekuri sesxebis vada gaizarda 30 wlamde, msesxeblebs saSualeba 

miecaT isargeblon 1 wliani saSeRavaTo periodiT da, rac mTavaria, Seiqmna 

ipoTekuri sesxis 4 axali nairsaxeoba:

~garantirebuli sesxi” 

garantirebuli sesxi aris 2 produqtis erToblioba: zrdadi anabari + ipo-

Tekuri sesxi. Tu klients jer ar aqvs gadawyvetili sesxis aReba da aseT 

perspeqtivaze mxolod samomavlod fiqrobs, mas SesaZlebloba aqvs Seagro-

vos Tanxa zrdad anabarze, xolo Semdeg garantirebulad, yovelgvari dama-

tebiTi Semowmebis gareSe, miiRos ipoTekuri an samomxmareblo sesxi.  

garantirebuli sesxis maqsimaluri moculoba 50000 aSS dolaria.

telefon banki

gadajeqi axal manqanaSi

ipoTekuri sesxebi
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TELEPHONE BANK

REPLACE YOUR CAR

REAL-ESTATE LOANS 

The year 2007 was successful for TBC Bank in terms of introducing new products. 
The menu of services provided by the Bank increased and became better suited to 
the clients’ demands. 

In particular, TBC Bank off ered the following new products to customers: 

Last year TBC Bank developed one more remote service – 24-hour telephone servi-
ce began functioning in May 2007. 

The Telephone Bank service is available 24 hours a day 7 days a week. By means of 
Telephone Bank the customer is able to obtain any information related to banking 
services. It also allows individuals to perform a number of operations by phone, 
e.g. make transfers, pay utility payments, open deposits, cover loans, order plastic 
cards, etc. 

In order to take advantage of the Telephone Bank service, all the client as to do is  
go to the Bank once and obtain a personal identifi cation code for telephone-based 
service. 

TBC Bank’s call centre answers over 140,000 calls per month. By the end of 2007, 
35,000 clients had used the Telephone Bank service. 

TBC Bank has developed a special product for those who have an old car and want 
to replace it with a new one, but don’t have enough money. “Replace Your Car” 
allows clients to buy a new car with a bank loan completely and then make arran-
gements to sell the old one without any haste - within four months after the date 
the loan is issued. 

TBC Bank responded to the quick development of the real estate market by sig-
nifi cantly improving the terms of real-estate loans and introducing several new 
products. 

In particular, the period of real-estate loans was increased up to 30 years; borrowers 
can now enjoy   a 1-year grace period and, most importantly,  four new types of 
real-estate loans were created: 

“Guaranteed Loan”

“Guaranteed Loan” is a combination of two products – increasing deposit + real-
estate loan. If the client hasn’t decided yet to take out a loan but is thinking about 
doing so in the future, he/she can accumulate a sum on the increasing deposit, and 
then obtain a real-estate or consumer loan without any additional verifi cation. The 
maximum amount of the “Guaranteed Loan” is 50,000 USD. 

“Annual Increase of Payments”

“Annual Increase of Payments” is a type of real-estate loan for people whose salary 
is not enough to obtain the requested amount and/or clients, for whom it is impor-
tant to make small payments on the initial stage of the loan.  
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ganvadebis baraTi

ipoTekuri sesxebi “Senatanebis yovelwliuri zrda” 

”Senatanebis yovelwliuri zrda” aris ipoTekuri sesxis nairsaxeoba, romelic 

gankuTvnilia pirebisaTvis, romelTa xelfasic ar yofnis sesxis moTxovnili 

Tanxis aRebas, da/an klientebisTvis, romelTaTvisac mniSvnelovania mcire 

Senatanebis gakeTeba sesxis moqmedebis sawyis etapze.

am tipis ipoTekuri sesxis pirvel wels klienti yovelTviurad ixdis ufro 

naklebs, vidre momdevno wels; meore wels ufro naklebs, vidre mesame wels 

da a.S., sesxis vadis bolomde. Senatanis zrda wlidan wlamde Seadgens 5%-s. 

~ofseti” 

ipoTekuri sesxis aRebis dros momxmarebels SesaZlebloba eZleva survilis 

SemTxvevaSi isargeblos sesxis procentis Semcirebis ”Off set” meqanizmiT _ Tu 

klienti SerCeul angariSze yovelTviurad an nebismieri sxva periodulobiT 

Caricxavs/Seitans xelfass an sxva nebismier danazogs, sesxis ZiriTad Tanxas 

gamoakldeba am angariSze arsebuli Tanxa da mxolod miRebuli naSTidan 

daiangariSeba ipoTekis procenti. 

am tipis ipoTekuri sesxi mosaxerxebelia im klientebisaTvis, romlebsac aqvT 

an gegmaven hqondeT bankSi danazogi da, amavdroulad, ipoTekuri sesxic ga-

aCniaT.

~Secvale saxli” 

“Secvale saxli” aris sesxis aRebis saukeTeso SesaZlebloba im adamianebisa-

Tvis, romelTac surT Zveli saxlis gayidva da axlis SeZena. ”Secvale saxli”-

s daxmarebiT klients saSualeba eZleva iyidos axali bina mTlianad bankis 

sesxiT da Semdeg izrunos Zvelis gayidvaze. 

msesxebelze realurad gaicema ori sesxi: erTi sesxi aris standartuli 

grZelvadiani ipoTekuri sesxi, xolo meore warmoadgens Sualedur sesxs, 

romelic ifareba arsebuli saxlis gayidvis Semdeg.

Tibisi bankma 2007 wlis dekembridan danerga axali produqti _ ~ganvadebis 

baraTi”. am baraTis popularobam yovelgvar molodins gadaaWarba: misi ga-

moSvebidan pirvelive Tves bankma 10,000 aseTi baraTi gayida. 

ganvadebis baraTi aris VISA Electron swrafi gamoSvebis (Instant Issue) baraTi, 

romliTac klients aqvs saqonlis an momsaxurebis ganvadebiT SeZenis Se-

saZlebloba. 

ganvadebis baraTi warmoadgens bankis mier klientisTvis winaswar damtkice-

bul sesxs, romlis gamoyenebac klients SeuZlia nebismier dros, bankTan yo-

velgvari winaswari SeTanxmebis gareSe. ganvadebis baraTis misaRebad araviTa-

ri sabuTis wardgena ar aris saWiro. sakmarisia mxolod piradobis mowmoba. 

produqtis minimaluri Rirebuleba, romlis SeZena SesaZlebelia ganvadebiT, 

aris 50 lari. ganvadebis maqsimaluri limiti ki 3000 laria. 

axali produqtebiaxali produqtebi

NEW PRODUCTSNEW PRODUCTS
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INSTALMENT CARD 

REAL-ESTATE LOANS During the fi rst year of real-estate loan of this type, the client’s monthly payment 
gradually increases with each passing year up to the end of the loan period. The 
annual increase of the payment is 5 per cent. 

“Off set”

When obtaining a real-estate loan the customer can use the “Off set” mechanism to 
decrease the interest of the loan – if the client transfers/ brings salary or any other 
savings to the selected account on a monthly basis or with any other periodicity, 
the sum, existing on this account will be deducted from the principal sum of the 
loan and the interest on real-estate loan will be calculated only for the remaining 
amount. 

This type of real-estate loan is suitable for clients who have or plan to have savings 
in the Bank during the loan period.

“Replace your House”

“Replace your House” is the best way of obtaining loan for people who want to sell 
their old house and buy the new one. “Replace your House” allows the client to buy 
the new house by Bank loan completely and then make arrangements to sell the 
old one. 

In fact, two separate loans are issued to the borrower: one loan is a standard long-
term loan, and the other loan is an interim loan, which will be covered after the old 
house is sold.   

In December 2007 TBC Bank introduced a new product called “Instalment Card”. 
The popularity of this card exceeded all expectations: during the fi rst month of 
issue, the Bank sold some 10,000 cards.

Instalment Card is a Visa Electron instant issue card, by means of which the client 
can buy goods or services on instalment.  

Instalment Card is a pre-approved loan to the client, which can be used at any time, 
without any preliminary agreement with the Bank. No document is required for 
obtaining the Instalment Card, aside from personal identifi cation. The minimum 
value of products that can be bought on instalment is 50 GEL, and the maximum 
limit is 3,000 GEL. 
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2007 wels, gayidvebis stimulirebis mizniT, Tibisi bankSi dainerga TanamS-

romlebis motivaciis axali sistema, romelic Seiqmna saerTaSoriso sakon-

sultacio saagentos ,,Senteo International”  mier SemuSavebuli koncefciis 

mixedviT. 

ganaxlebuli sistema agebulia gundur principebze da iTvaliswinebs moti-

vaciis rogorc materialur, aseve aramaterialur sistemebs.

materialuri motivaciis sistema xels uwyobs TanamSromelTa fokusirebas 

Tibisi bankis gegmebis Sesrulebasa da dasaxuli miznebis miRwevaze. exmare-

ba TanamSromlis muSaobis nayofierebis zrdas da maT klientze kidev ufro 

orientirebuls xdis. 

aramaterialuri motivaciis sistemis mizania Seuqmnas TanamSromlebs moti-

vacia da aamaRlos maTi kmayofilebis done _ daanaxos TanamSromlebs, rom 

maTi miRwevebi uzrunvelyofs organizaciis warmatebas da rom es miRwevebi 

ar rCeba banks SeumCneveli, rac  saSualebas iZleva gamovavlinoT warma-

tebuli TanamSromlebi, vaRiaroT maTi warmatebebi, wavaxalisoT isini da 

davajildovoT. 

materialuri motivaciis sistemas aqvs erTiani sistematizirebuli forma 

da emyareba gunduri muSaobis principebs, rac imas niSnavs, rom yvela Ta-

namSromeli inawilebs pasuxismgeblobas gundisTvis dasaxuli miznis Ses-

rulebis procesSi da aqtiurad aris CarTuli gayidvebsa da momsaxurebaSi, 

xolo dasaxuli miznis Sesrulebis SemTxvevaSi yvela TanamSromeli iRebs 

Sesabamis materialur anazRaurebas. 

materialuri motivaciis sistema gamWvirvalea da iTvaliswinebs yovel-

dRiur pirdapir komunikacias bankis Sida struqturebs Soris: gayidvebis 

konsultanti/sakredito eqsperti _ filialis direqtori _ gayidvebis gan-

yofilebis analitikosi _ regionaluri direqtori _ ufrosi kuratori _ 

gayidvebis direqtori.

gayidvebis stimulireba 
motivaciis sistemis 

ganaxlebiT

gayidvebis sistemagayidvebis sistema

SALES SYSTEMSALES SYSTEM
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SALES STIMULATION, RENEWAL OF 

MOTIVATION SYSTEM 

In order to stimulate sales, in 2007 a new system of personnel motivation, created 
on the basis of a concept developed by International Advisory Agency “Senteo In-
ternational”, was introduced at TBC Bank. 

The new system is based on the principle of teamwork and covers both fi nancial 
and non-fi nancial incentives. 

The system of fi nancial motivation facilitates focusing personnel on implementing 
TBC Bank’s plans and the achievement of set targets; improves the effi  ciency of the 
staff ’s activities and makes them even more customer-oriented.

The goal of the motivation system is to inspire personnel and increase the level of 
their satisfaction – to make them see that their achievements do not go unnoticed 
by the Bank. It also reveals the most successful employees, acknowledges their 
success and gives them incentives and awards.

The system of fi nancial motivation is uniform and systematic and is based on the 
principle teamwork, which means that all staff  members share responsibility in the 
process achieving a target set for the team and are actively involved in sales and 
service. Plus, when a given goal is achieved, all employees involved receive rele-
vant fi nancial remuneration.

The system of fi nancial motivation is transparent and ensures daily direct com-
munication among the Bank’s internal structures: sales consultants/loan experts, 
branch directors, sales department analysts, regional directors, chief curators, di-
rectors of sales. 
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fizikuri pirebis dakreditebis mxriv 2007 weli sakmaod warmatebuli iyo 

Tibisi bankisTvis. mniSvnelovnad gaizarda portfelis moculoba da klien-

tebis raodenoba. dainerga axali sasesxo produqtebi da kidev ufro daix-

vewa arsebuli produqtebis pirobebi.

2007 wlis bolos fizikur pirebze gacemuli sesxebis portfelma 313,940 

aTasi lari Seadgina. 2006 wlis analogiuri periodis monacemebTan Sedare-

biT, portfelis moculoba Sesabamisad 124%-iT, xolo gacemuli sesxebis 

raodenoba 4-jer gaizarda. 

klientebis raodenobis mniSvnelovani gazrda SesaZlebeli gaxda ufro 

farTo segmentis dakreditebiT, aseve axali produqtebisa da procesebis 

danergviT. aRsaniSnavia, rom portfelis mniSvnelovani zrda ganxorciel-

da momsaxurebis xarisxis maRal doneze SenarCunebis pirobebSi. am mizniT 

dainerga sesxebis monitoringis ufro moqnili meTodebi.

2007 wels ganxorcielda EBRD-is proeqti ipoTekur sesxebTan dakavSire-

biT. am proeqtis farglebSi kidev ufro daixvewa ipoTekuri sesxebis gace-

mis pirobebi.

danergili axali produqtebidan gansakuTrebiT aRsaniSnavia swrafi gan-

vadeba da ganvadebis baraTi.  aRniSnuli produqtebis danergvam mniSvne-

lovnad Seuwyo xeli portfelis raodenobriv zrdas da axali klientebis 

mozidvas.  

produqtebis danergvasTan erTad dainerga ganacxadebis damuSavebis axali 

sistema. aRniSnuli sistema saSualebas iZleva ganacxadebis damuSaveba mox-

des swrafad, avtomatur reJimSi. es ki xels uwyobs rogorc portfelis 

gazrdas, aseve klientebis kmayofilebis amaRlebas momsaxurebis siswrafis 

gaumjobesebis gziT.

fizikuri pirebis sakredito 
momsaxureba

sakredito portfelisakredito portfeli

CREDIT PORTFOLIOCREDIT PORTFOLIO
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CREDIT SERVICES FOR 

INDIVIDUALS

In terms of issuing loans to individuals, the year 2007 was quite successful for TBC 
Bank, as the volume of the portfolio and number of clients signifi cantly increased. 
New loan products have been introduced and the terms of existing products have 
been further improved.

By the end of the year 2007 the loan portfolio issues to individuals totalled 313 
940 thousand GEL. Compared to the data of the same period in 2006, the volume 
of the portfolio and number of clients increased by 124  per cent and 400 per cent, 
respectively.  

The signifi cant increase in the number of clients was made possible thanks to the 
Bank’s decision to credit wider segments and introduce new products. It is no-
teworthy that the signifi cant increase in the portfolio was implemented while fuly 
maintaining the high quality of service. More fl exible monitoring methods were 
introduced for this purpose. 

The year 2007 saw the implementation of an EBRD real-estate loans project. Within 
the framework of this project the terms of issue of real-estate loans were further 
improved.

Fast instalment payments and instalment cards were among the new products in-
troduced. They contributed to the quantitative increase of the portfolio and the 
attraction of new clients. 

In parallel with the introduction of new products, a new system for processing 
applications was introduced. The system allows applications to be processed quic-
kly and enables the growth of the portfolio and increased customer satisfaction.

CONSUMER
samomxmareblo sesxebi

INSTALLMENT
ganvadeba

14.8%

31.2%

GOLD PAWN
lombardi

4.3%

CREDIT CARDS
sakredito baraTebi

5.9%

MORTGAGE LOANS
ipoTekuri sesxebi

43.8%

fizikuri pirebis 
sakredito portfelis 

struqtura

RETAIL LOAN 

PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE
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korporatiuli klientebis momsaxurebakorporatiuli klientebis momsaxureba

CORPORATE BANKINGCORPORATE BANKING
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korporatiuli sabanko saqmianoba umniSvnelovanes rols TamaSobs Tibi-

si bankis konkurentuli upiratesobis SeqmnaSi. konkurenciis gamZafrebis 

pirobebSi, 2007 wels Tibisi bankma warmatebiT SeinarCuna qarTul sabanko 

seqtorSi lideris pozicia korporatiul segmentze. 

Tibisi bankis maCveneblebi am mimarTulebiT yovelwliurad izrdeba. amis 

paralelurad, momsaxurebis xarisxis amaRlebis mizniT, viTardeba bankis 

struqtura da muSaobis meTodika.

2007 wlis ganmavlobaSi bankis klienti kompaniebis raodenobam 17 000 er-

Teuls gadaaWarba, rac wina welTan SedarebiT 14%-ian zrdas gulisxmobs. 

gasul wels TiTqmis gaormagda Tibisi bankis mier gacemuli biznes sesxebis 

portfelis moculoba. Tu 2006 wlis bolos sakredito portfeli kor-

poratiul segmentze 452 milion lars Seadgenda, 2007 wlis bolos misma 

moculobam 854 milion lars gadaaWarba.  

sakredito portfelis aseTi didi moculobiT zrda ZiriTadad ganapiroba 

bankis dafinansebis gaaqtiurebam vaWrobis, momsaxurebis, uZravi qonebis, 

mSeneblobis da warmoebis sferoebSi. mTliani sakredito portfelis zr-

dis daaxloebiT 80% swored am seqtorebze modis. aRsaniSnavia, rom 347 

aTasi laridan 456 aTas laramde gaizarda saSualo sesxis moculoba, rac 

korporatiul seqtorSi moqmedi kompaniebis mxridan dafinansebis mzard 

moTxovnaze miuTiTebs. 

gaizarda aseve Tibisi bankis monawileoba dokumentalur operaciebSi. 2007 

wlis 31 dekembris mdgomareobiT, gacemuli akreditivebis da garantiebis 

moculobam 213 milion lars miaRwia, rac wina wlis monacems 40%-iT aRe-

mateba. 

korporatiul seqtorSi mniSvnelovani zrda moxda agreTve depozitebis 

kuTxiT. moziduli saxsrebis moculoba 2007 wlis ganmavlobaSi 244 milio-

ni laridan 343 mln laramde gaizarda. es maCvenebeli naTlad miuTiTebs 

korporatiul seqtorSi Tibisi bankis mimarT arsebul maRal ndobaze. 

korporatiuli sabanko momsaxurebakorporatiuli sabanko momsaxureba
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Corporate banking plays an important role in the creation of competitive advanta-
ge of TBC Bank. In 2007, in spite of intensifi ed competition, TBC Bank successfully 
retained the leading position on a corporate segment in Georgia’s banking sector.

TBC Bank’s indicators in this direction are increasing annually. At the same time, 
the bank’s structure and operation methodology is being developed in order to 
improve quality of service.

The number of TBC Bank’s corporate clients in 2007 exceeded 17,000, which is a 
14% increase compared to the previous year.

Business loan portfolio issued by TBC Bank in 2007 practically doubled. If at the 
end of 2006 credit portfolio for a corporate segment equaled 452 million GEL, its 
volume at the end of 2007 exceeded 854 million GEL.

Such a signifi cant growth of credit portfolio was mainly conditioned by the increa-
se of bank’s fi nancing in the spheres of trade, service, real estate, construction and 
production. These sectors account for approximately 80% of the growth of total 
credit portfolio. It should be noted that average loan size increased from 347,000 
GEL to 456,000 GEL, which demonstrates growing demand for fi nancing of compa-
nies active in the corporate sector.

In addition, TBC Bank’s participation in documentary operations has also increased. 
As of 31 December 2007, the volume of issued letters of credit and guarantees has 
reached 213 million GEL, which is 40% higher than the previous year’s indicator.

Moreover, deposits in corporate sector have increased considerably as well. Funds 
attracted over 2007 have increased from 244 million GEL to 343 million GEL. This 
indicator obviously demonstrates high level of trust towards TBC Bank from corpo-
rate clients.

Qualitative indicators of credit portfolio are to be mentioned: overdue loans to to-
tal portfolio ratio equals 2.8%, and average reserve indicator is 3.4%.

korporatiuli 
portfelis struqtura 

dargebis mixedviT
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PORTFOLIO BY SECTORS

AGRICULTURE
soflis meurneoba

REAL ESTATE CONSTRUCTION
mSenebloba da uZravi qoneba
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komunikaciebi

2.9%
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16.6%
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4%
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aRsaniSnavia sakredito portfelis xarisxobrivi maCveneblebi: vadagadaci-

lebuli sesxebis Tanafardoba mTlian portfelTan 2,8%-s Seadgens, xolo 

rezervis saSualo maCvenebeli 3,4%-ia. 

2007 wels moxda korporatiuli seqtoris dayofa or ZiriTad mimarTu-

lebad: mcire da saSualo moculobis biznesi da msxvili korporatiuli 

biznesi. 

bankis filialebis masStabiT Camoyalibda mcire da saSualo sesxebze momu-

Save sakredito eqspertebis jgufebi, romelTa ZiriTadi funqciaa 300 aTas 

aSS dolaramde sakredito ganacxadebis moZieba da dafinanseba. filialebSi 

sakredito eqspertebis organizebulma da fokusirebulma muSaobam xeli 

Seuwyo mcire da saSualo seqtorSi bankis poziciebis gaZlierebas, rac, 

pirvel rigSi, klientebis raodenobis zrdasa da momsaxurebis xarisxis 

amaRlebaSi gamoixata. 

amasTan, mcire da saSualo sesxebis portfelis maRali xarisxis uzrun-

velyofisa da sakredito riskebis minimizaciis mizniT Seiqmna centrali-

zebuli mcire da saSualo biznesis dakreditebis ganyofileba. am ganyofi-

lebis funqciaa sakredito portfelis monitoringi, portfelur WrilSi 

sakredito riskebis drouli identifikacia da aRmofxvra, aseve filia-

lebidan Semosul sakredito ganacxadebze gadawyvetilebis miReba. ganyo-

fileba pasuxismgebelia bankis filialebis masStabiT mcire da saSualo 

biznes seqtorSi dasaqmebuli personalis muSaobis koordinaciasa da kva-

lifikaciis amaRlebazec.

msxvili korporatiuli biznesi bankSi ori ganyofilebiT aris warmodgeni-

li: korporatiuli dakreditebis ganyofileba da korporatiuli gayidve-

bis ganyofileba.

2007 wels korporatiuli dakreditebis ganyofilebaSi moxda sakredito 

portfelis dargobrivi dayofa da gadanawileba sakredito analitikosebs 

Soris. dargobrivi analitikuri jgufebis Camoyalibebam da calkeul biz-

nes mimarTulebebze analitikosebis fokusirebulma muSaobam kidev ufro 

aamaRla msxvili korporatiuli klientebis sakredito ganacxadebis damu-

Savebis xarisxi. garda amisa, gaizarda sakredito analitikosebis kvali-

fikacia, biznesis Sefasebis unari da dargobrivi eqspertiza.

calke aRniSvnis Rirsia specializirebuli produqtebis dafinansebis gan-

yofileba, romelic korporatiuli dakreditebis struqturul erTeul-

Si 2007 wlis dasawyisSi Camoyalibda. specializirebuli produqtebis da-

finansebis ganyofileba aerTianebs faqtoringis, savaWro operaciebis da 

proeqtebis dafinansebis jgufebs. 

faqtoringuli momsaxurebis danergviT, rac gulisxmobs kompaniebis de-

bitoruli angariSebis Sesyidvas, SesaZlebeli gaxda bankis klienti or-

ganizaciebis fuladi saxsrebis nakadebis gaumjobeseba da likvidurobis 

gazrda. amasTan, faqtoringiT dafinansebam xeli Seuwyo aRniSnuli kompa-
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In 2007 corporate sector was divided into two main directions: small and medium 
sized enterprises (SME) and large corporate business.

Groups of loan offi  cers working on small and medium loans were established 
throughout Bank’s branches; these groups mainly focus on attracting and fi nan-
cing loans in the amount of up to USD 300,000. Organized and focused work of 
loan offi  cers in branches has helped strengthen the bank’s position on SME sector, 
which was primarily demonstrated through the increase of number of clients and 
the quality of services.

Moreover, to ensure high quality of SME loan portfolio and minimization of cre-
dit risks, centralized SME Lending Department was established. The functions of 
this department include monitoring of credit portfolio, timely identifi cation and 
elimination of credit risks, as well as making decisions on credit applications recei-
ved from branches. The department is also responsible for coordination of work 
and professional development of staff  employed in SME sector through the Bank’s 
branches.

TBC Bank has two departments focused on large corporate businesses: Corporate 
Lending Department and Corporate Sales Department.

In 2007 credit portfolio of Corporate Lending Department was divided by business 
sectors and each sector was allocated to credit analysts. The formation of analytical 
groups dedicated to diff erent sectors and their focused work on specifi c business 
directions has further increased the quality of processing of credit applications 
from large corporate clients. Additionally, credit analysts’ qualifi cations, business 
appraisal skills and fi eld expertise have improved.

Department of Specialized Products Financing is worth pointing out; this De-
partment was established in early 2007 under Corporate Lending Structural Unit. 
Specialized Products Financing Department comprises of factoring, trading opera-
tions and project fi nancing groups.

As a result of introduction of factoring services that entail purchasing of debit ac-
counts of companies, cash fl ow and liquidity of the Bank’s corporate clients was 
improved. Moreover, fi nancing through factoring has facilitated the growth of sa-

portfelis struqtura 
gacemuli sesxebis 

moculobis mixedviT
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niebis gayidvebis zrdas, axali momxmareblebis SeZenasa da savaWro pirobe-

bis gaumjobesebas.   

savaWro operaciebis dafinansebis jgufi axorcielebs korporatiuli 

klientebis msxvili savaWro garigebebis dafinansebas, rac kompaniebs sa-

Sualebas aZlevT awarmoon sxvadasxva tipis produqciis importi da reeqs-

porti saerTaSoriso praqtikaSi aprobirebuli dokumentaluri operacie-

bis (akreditivi, saerTaSoriso garantia da a.S.) gamoyenebis gziT. am saxis 

dafinansebis danergvam mniSvnelovnad gaamartiva msesxebeli kompaniebisa-

Tvis savaWro operaciebis dafinansebis procedurebi da minimumamde daiyva-

na aseTi tipis garigebebSi arsebuli savaWro da finansuri riskebi. 

proeqtebis dafinansebis jgufis amocanaa standartulze maRali riskiano-

bis mqone sakredito ganacxadebis damuSaveba, rac gulisxmobs kompaniebis 

axali biznes mimarTulebebis dafinansebasa da arsebuli biznesebis mniSvne-

lovan gafarToebas. am jgufis calke gamoyofam sagrZnoblad gaaumjobe-

sa rTuli proeqtebis analizisa da sakredito riskebis Sefasebis xarisxi, 

ramac, Tavis mxriv, xeli Seuwyo bankis dafinansebis arealis gazrdasa da 

klientebis biznes SesaZleblobebis ganviTarebas. 

2007 wels korporatiuli gayidvebis ganyofileba, romelic bankis filiale-

bis masStabiT iyo warmodgenili, centralizebul struqturul erTeulad 

Camoyalibda da ganTavsda marjaniSvilis quCaze mdebare bankis centralur 

ofisSi. aRniSnulma garemoebam mniSvnelovnad gaaadvila msxvil korpora-

tiul klientebTan komunikaciis xarisxi. 

calke unda aRiniSnos korporatiuli bankiris instituti, romelic aseve 

2007 wlis dasawyisSi Camoyalibda. msxvil korporatiul klientebze mima-

grebuli iqna korporatiuli bankirebi, romelTa mTavari amocanaa kliente-

bis moTxovnilebebze drouli reagireba da maTi problemebis operatiuli 

mogvareba. garda amisa, korporatiuli bankirebi aqtiurad arian CarTulni 

sxvadasxva tipis sabanko produqtebis realizaciis procesSi. 

zogadad, korporatiuli momsaxurebis mimarTulebiT ganxorcielebulma 

cvlilebebma da korporatiuli bankirebis institutis SemoRebam mniSvne-

lovnad Seuwyo xeli korporatiul biznesSi bankis kompetenciis ganviTare-

bas, aseve, momsaxurebis xarisxis gaumjobesebas da produqtebis mravalfe-

rovnebis gazrdas, rac araerTgzis dadasturda marketinguli kvlevebiTa 

da seqtorSi dasaqmebuli kompaniebis gamokiTxvebiT. 

2008 wels Tibisi banks korporatiul seqtorze kvlavac ambiciuri gegmebi 

gaaCnia, rac gamoixateba sakredito portfelisa da sadepozito portfelis 

moculobebis zrdaSi, agreTve axali produqtebis danergva-ganviTarebaSi, 

rac mniSvnelovnad Seuwyobs xels bankis lideri poziciis ganmtkicebas 

korporatiul seqtorze.
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les of the above-mentioned companies, acquiring of new customers and the im-
provement of trading conditions.

Trading Operations Financing Group fi nances large trading deals of corporate 
clients, which enables companies to perform import and re-export of various ty-
pes of products through documentary operations (letter of credit, international 
guarantee, etc.). The introduction of this type of fi nancing has signifi cantly sim-
plifi ed procedures of fi nancing of trade operations for borrowing entities and has 
minimized trade and fi nancial risks related to such dealings.

The objective of Projects Financing Group is to process high risk credit applica-
tions, which entails fi nancing of companies’ new business directions and major ex-
pansion of existing businesses. As a result of this separate unit, quality of analysis 
of complex projects and the evaluation of credit risks has considerably improved, 
which, in its turn, facilitated the increase of the Bank’s area of fi nancing and the 
development of clients’ business potential. 

In 2007 Corporate Sales Department represented throughout the Bank’s branches 
was established as a centralized structural unit and placed in the Bank‘s head offi  ce 
on Marjanishvili Street. This has signifi cantly simplifi ed relations with large corpo-
rate clients.

Corporate Banker’s function established at the beginning of 2007 has to be sin-
gled out. Corporate bankers were assigned to large corporate clients; major task 
of these corporate bankers is to timely respond to clients’ needs and requests and 
swiftly resolve their problems. Besides this, corporate bankers are actively involved 
in selling variety of banking products. 

Generally, changes implemented in corporate services and the introduction of 
corporate bankers’ function have signifi cantly facilitated development of bank’s 
competence in corporate business, as well as the improvement of service quality 
and the increase of the diversity of products, which was repeatedly confi rmed by 
marketing research and the survey of companies active in this sector.

TBC Bank’s plans in relation to corporate sector for 2008 remain to be ambitious, 
which is demonstrated by the growth of both credit and deposit portfolios, as well 
as the introduction and development of new products, which will signifi cantly faci-
litate the strengthening of the Bank’s leading position in the corporate sector.
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Tibisi bankis strategiuli ganviTarebis TvalsazrisiT, gasuli wlis 

umniSvnelovanesi movlena iyo Tibisis sainvesticio bankis daarseba. 

Tibisi bankis am axali mimarTulebis Seqmna emsaxureboda momxmare-

blebisa da, zogadad, bazris mzardi moTxovnis dakmayofilebas, iu-

ridiuli da  fizikuri pirebisTvis srulyofili finansuri servisis 

SeTavazebis mizniT. 

Tibisis sainvesticio bankis mizania SesTavazos klientebs saukeTeso 

inovaciuri ideebi maTi biznesisa da piradi dovlaTis gafarToebis-

Tvis. 

maRalkvalificiuri wevrebiT dakompleqtebuli gundis meSveobiT,  

Tibisi bankis sainvesticio bankma saqmianobis dasawyisidanve SesTava-

za fizikur da iuridiul pirebs sxvadasxva saxis finansuri servisi: 

kompaniis Rirebulebis Sefaseba, finansuri konsultacia, saSuamavlo 

saqmianoba, finansuri dagegmva, kapitalis marTvis mTeli rigi pro-

duqtebi da servisebi.

ukve 2007 wels, saqmianobis dasawyisSive, Tibisi bankis sainvesti-

cio bankma ganaxorciela mTeli rigi RonisZiebebi: evropis erT-erT 

wamyvan pirad bankTan TanamSromlobiT, danerga kapitalis marTvis 

inovaciuri produqti; moaxdina kompaniebis finansuri Sefaseba, in-

vesticiebis ganTavseba da maTi sakonsultacio momsaxureba.  

ambiciuri dasawyisis Semdeg Tibisi bankis sainvesticio banki agrZe-

lebs axali ideebis Ziebas klientebisTvis srulyofili da maRalkva-

lificiuri servisis gawevis uzrunvelsayofad. 2008 wels sainvesti-

cio banki gegmavs mTel rig RonisZiebebs: produqtebisa da servisebis 

mravalferovani speqtris Camoyalibebas, axali bazrebisa da sainves-

ticio SesaZleblobebis aTvisebas, analitikuri bazis ganviTarebasa 

da sazRvargareTis wamyvan finansur institutebTan partniorobas. 

Tibisis sainvesticio banki iRwvis, rom gaxdes bazris wamyvani moTa-

maSe da xeli Seuwyos zrdasa da ganviTarebas, rogorc adgilobrivi, 

ise saerTaSoriso masStabiT. 
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The latest milestone achieved in TBC Bank’s strategic development is the establis-
hment of TBC Investment Bank in 2007. 

This new endeavor is targeted at addressing the growing needs and demands of 
clients and the market in general for a body that would off er comprehensive fi nan-
cial solutions for corporate and institutional clients. TBC Investment Bank strives to 
provide its clients with the best and most innovative ideas to develop their busi-
nesses and private wealth.

TBC Investment Bank is comprised of highly qualifi ed and experienced team mem-
bers and together with TBC Broker, it was able from the very beginning to off er a 
variety of products and services to both individual and corporate clients. These in-
clude company valuations, fi nancial consultations, intermediary services, fi nancial 
planning, as well as a range of wealth management products and services.   
   
Already in 2007, the year of its inception, TBC Investment Bank participated in a 
number of transactions. It designed an innovative wealth management product in 
collaboration with one of the largest European private banks, performed company 
valuations and private placements and provided advisory services. 

Since its ambitious start, TBC Investment bank has been striving to discover new 
and sophisticated ideas in order to ensure that clients receive exceptional service.  
In 2008, TBC Investment Bank will be working towards enriching its products and 
services portfolio, exploring new markets and investment opportunities, develo-
ping its analytical capacity and establishing partnerships with prominent foreign 
fi nancial institutions.

TBC Investment Bank seeks to become one of the leading players in the market 
and to contribute to growth and development both locally and regionally.
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TBC BANK GROUP 
 
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL 
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 

 

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors’ responsibilities 
stated in the independent auditors’ report set out on pages 2-3, is made with a view to distinguishing  
the respective responsibilities of management and those of the independent auditors in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements of Joint Stock Company TBC Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries 
(the “Group”). 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly the 
financial position of the Group at 31 December 2007, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes 
in equity for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for: 
 
 Selecting suitable accounting principles and applying them consistently; 
 Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 Stating whether IFRS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 

in the consolidated financial statements; and 
 Preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate  

to presume that the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future. 
 
Management is also responsible for: 
 
 Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, 

throughout the Group; 
 Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time,  

the financial position of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group comply with IFRS; 

 Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and 
 Detecting and preventing fraud, errors and other irregularities. 

 
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 were authorized for issue on 
23 June 2008 by the management board. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Management Board: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
General Director First Deputy General Director 
Vakhtang Butskhrikidze Paata Gadzadze 
23 June 2008 23 June 2008 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of TBC Bank Group: 
  
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSC TBC Bank and its subsidiaries 
(together the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, and the 
consolidated income statement, consolidated statements of changes in equity and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.  
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of  
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of  
the entity’s internal control. 
 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide  
a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of 
TBC Bank Group as at 31 December 2007, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
 
 
 
23 June 2008 
Tbilisi 
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TBC BANK GROUP 
 
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 
(in Georgian Lari and in thousands) 
 

 Notes Year ended 
31 December 

2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
     
Interest income 6,29 165,326  94,229 
Interest expense 6,29 (81,353)  (39,346) 
     
NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT 

LOSSES ON INTEREST BEARING ASSETS  83,973  54,883 
     
Provision for impairment losses on interest bearing assets 7 (26,494)  (9,942) 
     
NET INTEREST INCOME  57,479  44,941 
     
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 8 (846)  (292) 
Net gain on foreign exchange operations 9 15,939  9,735 
Fee and commission income 10 25,579  16,272 
Fee and commission expense 10 (4,227)  (4,192) 
Net loss on subsidiaries  -  (23) 
Net gain on investments available-for-sale  191  - 
Other income 11 9,657  2,217 
     
NET NON-INTEREST INCOME  46,293  23,717 
     
OPERATING INCOME  103,772  68,658 
     
OPERATING EXPENSES 12 (67,127)  (32,750) 
     

Recovery of provision/(provision) for impairment losses other transactions 7 1,801  (6,008) 
     
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX  38,446  29,900 
     
Income tax expense 13 (9,875)  (7,319) 
     
NET PROFIT  28,571  22,581 
     
Attributable to:     

Equity holders of the parent  28,418  22,471 
Minority interest  153  110 

     
  28,571  22,581 
 
 
On behalf of the Management Board: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
General Director First Deputy General Director 
Vakhtang Butskhrikidze Paata Gadzadze 
23 June 2008 23 June 2008 
Tbilisi Tbilisi 
 
The notes on pages 8-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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TBC BANK GROUP 
 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 
(in Georgia Lari and in thousands) 
 

 Notes 31 December 
2007 

 31 December 
2006 

     
ASSETS:     

Cash and balances with the National Bank of Georgia 14 183,833  197,425 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 363  1,177 
Due from banks 16, 29 80,994  49,630 
Loans to customers 17, 29 1,148,278  588,182 
Investments available-for-sale 18 5,219  4,590 
Investments held to maturity 19 114,596  50,253 
Goodwill 20 758  - 
Property, plant and equipment purchased for transfer into lease  326  - 
Property, plant and equipment 21 118,170  53,233 
Current income tax assets  6,808  - 
Other assets 22 40,793  9,617 

     
TOTAL ASSETS  1,700,138  954,107 
     
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     
     
LIABILITIES:     

Due to banks and financial institutions 23, 29 525,398  238,047 
Customer accounts 24, 29 779,541  552,168 
Current income tax liabilities  -  1,800 
Deferred income tax liabilities 13 13,786  2,289 
Other liabilities 25 13,022  14,124 
Subordinated debt 26 55,881  25,065 

     
Total liabilities  1,387,628  833,493 

     
EQUITY:     
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:     

Share capital 27 11,700  5,385 
Share premium 27 136,279  4,715 
Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve  35,385  10,003 
Retained earnings  128,574  100,156 
     
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  311,938  120,259 
     
Minority interest  572  355 

     
Total equity  312,510  120,614 

     
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  1,700,138  954,107 
 
 
On behalf of the Management Board: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
General Director First Deputy General Director 
Vakhtang Butskhrikidze Paata Gadzadze 
23 June 2008 23 June 2008 
Tbilisi Tbilisi 
 
The notes on pages 8-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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TBC BANK GROUP 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 
(in Georgian Lari and in thousands) 
 

 Share  
Capital 

 Share  
premium 

 Property
, plant 

and 
equip-
ment 

revaluati
on 

reserve 

 Retained 
earnings 

 Total 
equity 
attri-

butable  
to equity  

holders of 
the 

parent 

 Minority 
interest 

 Total  
equity 

              
31 December 2005  5,385 4,715 10,003 79,685 99,788 - 99,788 
              
Dividends declared on:              

- ordinary shares - - - (2,000) (2,000) -  (2,000) 
Loss on sale of shares -  -  -  -  -  23  23 
Sale of shares -  -  -  -  -  222  222 
Net profit - - - 22,471 22,471 110 22,581 
              
31 December 2006  5,385 4,715 10,003 100,156 120,259 355 120,614 
              
Share capital increase of:              

- ordinary shares 6,145  127,447  -  -  133,592  -  133,592 
Gains/(losses) on revaluation of fixed 

assets, net of income tax effect of 
GEL 3,744 thousand -  -  25,382  -  25,382  -  25,382 

Loss on sale of shares -  -  -  -  -  64  64  
Share based payments 170  4,117  -  -  4,287  -  4,287 
Net profit -  -  -  28,418  28,418  153  28,571 
              
31 December 2007  11,700  136,279  35,385  128,574  311,938  572  312,510 
 
 
On behalf of the Management Board: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
General Director First Deputy General Director 
Vakhtang Butskhrikidze Paata Gadzadze 
23 June 2008 23 June 2008 
Tbilisi Tbilisi 
 
The notes on pages 8-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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TBC BANK GROUP 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 
(in Georgian Lari and in thousands) 
 

 Notes Year ended 
31 December 

2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:     

Interest received  160,702  89,501 
Interest paid  (73,913)  (33,194) 
Fees and commissions received  25,579  18,981 
Fees and commissions paid  (4,227)  (5,394) 
Realized gains less losses in foreign currencies  16,954  9,694 
Other operating income  8,029  2,631 
Salaries and benefits  (33,645)  (16,794) 
Administrative and operating expenses  (27,077)  (8,579) 

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in 
operating assets and liabilities  72,402  56,846 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities     
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:     

Obligatory reserve with the NBG  (26,083)  (22,477) 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  (50)  (12,045) 
Due to banks  (59,851)  28,936 
Loans to clients  (581,502)  (218,937) 
Other assets  (28,559)  (7,681) 

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities     
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  67  11,791 
Due from banks and financial institutions  278,069  134,316 
Customer accounts  226,742  170,033 
Other liabilities  (729)  295 

Cash inflow from operating activities before taxation  (119,494)  141,077 
Income tax paid  (10,730)  (10,933) 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities  (130,224)  130,144 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:     
Purchases of investment held-to-maturity  (61,802)  (42,791) 
Purchases of investment available-for-sale  (629)  (5,331) 
Proceeds from investments in associates and subsidiaries  -  603 
Purchases of property and equipment  (42,129)  (19,956) 
Proceeds on sale of property and equipment  26  310 

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (104,534)  (67,165) 
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TBC BANK GROUP 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 
(in Georgian Lari and in thousands) 
 

 

Notes Year ended 
31 December 

2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:     

Share capital  6,315  - 
Share premium  131,564  - 
Subordinated debt  30,126  17,135 
Dividends paid  -  (2,000) 

     
Net cash inflow from financing activities  168,005  15,135 

     
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (66,753)  78,114 
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash 

equivalents  (1,015)  41 
     
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 14 167,185  89,030 
      
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 14 99,417  167,185 
 
 
On behalf of the Management Board: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
General Director First Deputy General Director 
Vakhtang Butskhrikidze Paata Gadzadze 
23 June 2008 23 June 2008 
Tbilisi Tbilisi 
 
The notes on pages 8-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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TBC BANK GROUP 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 
 
 
1. ORGANISATION 

 
Joint Stock Company TBC Bank (the “Bank”) is a joint stock company, which was incorporated in 
Georgia on 17 December 1992. The Bank is regulated by the National Bank of Georgia (the “NBG”) 
and conducts its business under the general banking license number 85 granted on 20 January 1993. 
The Bank’s primary business consists of commercial activities, trading with foreign currencies and 
originating loans and guarantees.  
 
The registered office of the Bank is located at 121 Rustaveli Street, 383720 Borjomi, Georgia. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 the Bank has 13 branches and 29 service centers operating in Georgia. 
 
The Bank is a parent company of a banking group (the “Group”) which consists of the following 
enterprises consolidated in the financial statements: 
 

  The Bank ownership 
interest/voting rights, % 

 

Name Country of 
operation 

2007 2006 Type of operation 

     
JSC TBC Bank (parent) Georgia   Commercial bank 
     
JSC TBC Leasing Georgia 90% 90% Finance leasing 
     
JSC United Financial Corporation Georgia 

90% 
45% Plastic card processing 

center 
     
TBC Broker LLC 

Georgia 100% 100% 
Securities market 

transactions 
     
UFC International Limited Virgin  

Islands (UK) 80% 80% 
Plastic card transactions’ 

processing 
 
 
Joint Stock Company TBC Leasing is a Joint Stock Company, incorporated in Georgia in 2003. The 
Company’s registered office is located at 11 Chavchavadze Avenue, Tbilisi 0179, Georgia. The 
principal business activity of the Company is providing finance leases to companies within Georgia. 
 
Joint Stock Company United Financial Corporation is a Joint Stock Company, incorporated in 
Georgia in 2001. The Company’s registered office is located at 154 Agmashenebeli Avenue, Tbilisi 
0112, Georgia. The principal business activity of the Company is providing plastic card processing 
services to companies within Georgia. 
 
TBC Broker LLC (100%) and UFC International Limited (80%), subsidiaries, are not consolidated 
into the consolidated financial statements due to the immateriality of their financial statements. 
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As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the following shareholders owned the issued shares: 
 

 31 December 
2007, % 

 31 December 
2006, % 

    
Shareholder    
    
Raiki LLC 28.60  - 
Mamuka Khazaradze 12.78  0.02 
International Finance Corporation 11.94  30.95 
TBC Holdings LLC 9.97  21.67 
Deutshe Investitions and Entwicklungesellschaft mbH. 9.64  13.33 
Liquid Crystal International 9.25  20.10 
Badri Japaridze 8.38  5.51 
David Khazaradze 5.43  6.58 
George Kekelidze 1.77  1.84 
Vakhtang Butskhrikidze 1.11  - 
Others 1.13  - 
    
Total 100.00  100.00 
    
 
 
As of 31 December 2007 and 2006, the ultimate shareholders of the Group are: 
 
 
The ultimate controlling parties of the Bank as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 were Mamuka 
Khazaradze and Badri Japaridze who achieved control through Raiki LLC, TBC Holding LLC and 
Liquid Chrystal International. 
 
These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Management Board of the 
Group on 23 June 2008. 
 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
Accounting basis 
 
These financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and 
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). 
 
These financial statements are presented in thousands of Georgian Lari (“GEL”), unless otherwise 
indicated. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, except for the measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments and 
measurement of buildings at revalued amounts according to International Accounting Standard 
(“IAS”) No. 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” (“IAS 16”).. 
 
The Bank and its subsidiaries maintain their accounting records in accordance with IFRS, while its 
foreign subsidiaries maintain accounting records in accordance with the requirements of the countries 
where those subsidiaries operate. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on 
accounting records of the Bank and its Georgian subsidiaries, and financial statements of foreign 
subsidiaries, which have been adjusted to conform to IFRS. These adjustments include certain 
reclassifications to reflect the economic substance of underlying transactions including reclassifications 
of certain assets and liabilities, income and expenses to appropriate financial statement captions. 
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Key assumptions 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Such estimates and assumptions 
are based on the information available to the Group’s management as of the date of the consolidated 
financial statements. Therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. 
Estimates that are particularly susceptible to change relate to the provisions for impairment losses 
and the fair value of financial instruments. 
Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance 
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial period include: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Allowance for impairment losses on interest bearing assets 26,494  9,942 
Allowance for impairment losses for other transactions 1,801  6,008 
 
 
Loans to customers and due from banks are measured at amortised cost less allowance for 
impairment losses. The estimation of allowances for impairments involves the exercise of significant 
judgment.  
 
The Group estimates allowances for impairment with the objective of maintaining balance sheet 
provisions at a level believed by management to be sufficient to absorb probable losses incurred in 
the Group’s loan portfolio. The calculation of provisions on impaired loans is based on the likelihood 
of the asset being written off and the estimated loss on such a write-off. These assessments are made 
using statistical techniques based on historic experience. These determinations are supplemented by 
various formulaic calculations and the application of management judgment. 
 
The Group considers accounting estimates related to provisions for loans key sources of estimation 
uncertainty because: (i) they are highly susceptible to change from period to period as the 
assumptions about future default rates and valuation of losses relating to impaired loans and 
advances are based on recent performance experience, and (ii) any significant difference between the 
Group’s estimated losses (as reflected in the provisions) and actual losses will require the Group to 
take provisions which, if significantly different, could have a material impact on its future income 
statement and its balance sheet. The Group’s assumptions about estimated losses are based on past 
performance, past customer behavior, the credit quality of recent underwritten business and general 
economic conditions, which are not necessarily an indication of future losses. 
 
Certain property (buildings) is measured at revalued amounts. The date of the latest appraisal was  
31 December 2007. The next revaluation is preliminary scheduled for 31 December 2008. 
 
Investments available-for-sale are measured at fair value less impairment losses. The estimation of 
impairments involves the exercise of significant management judgment.  
 
 
The accounting policy for the impairment of financial instruments is discussed in Note 3 below.  
 
Taxation is discussed in Note 13. 
 
Functional currency 
 
The functional currency of these financial statements is the Georgian Lari.  
 



TBC BANKTBC BANKANNUAL REPORT 2007ANNUAL REPORT 2007 6565

 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of consolidation 
 
The consolidated financial report incorporates the financial report of the Bank, entities controlled  
by the Bank (its subsidiaries) and entities under common control made up to the end of each period.. 
Control is achieved where the Bank has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an 
investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 
 
On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their 
fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the 
identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition 
below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition) is credited to 
the consolidated income statement in the period of acquisition. The minority interest is stated at the 
minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognized. Subsequently, any losses 
applicable to the minority interest in excess of the minority interest are allocated against the interests 
of the parent. The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent and net income attributable to 
minority shareholders’ interests are shown separately in the consolidated balance sheet and income 
statement, respectively.  
 
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated 
income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as 
appropriate. 
 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the 
accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group. 
 
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation and 
combination. 
 
The difference, if any, between the carrying amount of minority interest and the amount received on 
its purchase is recognized in equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. 
 
Investments in associates and jointly controlled enterprises 
 
An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but 
not control or joint control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of 
the investee. 
 
Investment in a jointly controlled enterprise is an entity over which the Group executes a joint 
control, which is when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities 
of the jointly controlled enterprise require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 
 
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and jointly controlled enterprises are incorporated 
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting, which is an alternative treatment 
allowed by IAS 31 versus the proportionate consolidation. 
 
Investments in associates and jointly controlled enterprises are carried in the consolidated balance sheet 
at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate 
and jointly controlled enterprise, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses 
of the associates and jointly controlled enterprises in excess of the Group’s interest in those associates 
and jointly controlled enterprises are not recognized. 



Tibisi bankiTibisi banki wliuri angarwliuri angariSi i 200720076666

 

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate and jointly controlled enterprises at the date of 
acquisition is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any deficiency of the cost of 
acquisition below the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities of the associate at the date of acquisition (i.e. discount on acquisition) is 
credited in the consolidated income statement in the period of acquisition. The goodwill is included in 
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.  
 
Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated 
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate and jointly controlled enterprise. Losses 
may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred in which case appropriate provision 
is made for impairment. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 the Bank did not have any investments in associates. As at 31 December 
2006 assets, liabilities and net profit/(loss) for the year then ended of associates are presented as 
follows: 
 
Name of associate Total assets of 

associate 
Total liabilities of 

associate 
Revenue of 
associate 

Net profit 

     
JSC GPIH 13,360 11,179 8,705 109 

 
 
As at 31 December 2007 assets, liabilities and net profit/(loss) for the year then ended of jointly 
controlled enterprises are presented as follows: 
 
Name of jointly 
controlled enterprise 

 Total assets of 
jointly controlled 

enterprise 

 Total liabilities 
of jointly 
controlled 
enterprise 

 Revenue of 
jointly 

controlled 
enterprise 

 Net loss 

         
JSC GPI B.V.  25,312  28,096  12,859  (2,344) 

 
 
Goodwill 
 
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s 
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, 
associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition. The Group’s policy for goodwill 
arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under ‘Investments in associates’ above. 
 
The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. 
 
If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the Group: 
 
(a) Reassesses the identification and measurement of the Group’s identifiable assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of the combination; and 
(b) Recognizes immediately in profit or loss any excess remaining after that reassessment. 
 
On disposal of an investment, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of 
the profit or loss on disposal. 
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Recognition and measurement of financial instruments 
 
The Group recognizes financial assets and liabilities on its consolidated balance sheet when it 
becomes a party to the contractual obligation of the instrument. Regular way purchase and sale of the 
financial assets and liabilities are recognized using settlement date accounting. Regular way 
purchases of financial instruments that will be subsequently measured at fair value between trade 
date and settlement date are accounted for in the same way as for acquired instruments. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. The accounting policies for subsequent 
re-measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies set out below. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted balances on correspondent and time 
deposit accounts with the National Bank of Georgia with original maturity within  
90 days, advances to banks in countries included in the Organization for Economic Co-operation and 
Development (“OECD”). For purposes of determining cash flows, the minimum reserve deposit 
required by the National Bank of Georgia is not included as a cash equivalent due to restrictions on 
its availability. 
 
Due from banks 
 
In the normal course of business, the Group maintains advances and deposits for various periods of 
time with other banks. Due from banks with a fixed maturity term are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Those that do not have fixed maturities are carried at 
amortized cost based on expected maturities. Amounts due from credit institutions are carried net of any 
allowance for impairment losses. 
 
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
 
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss represent instruments acquired/incurred principally 
for the purpose of selling/settlement in the near term, or it is a part of portfolio of a identified financial 
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent and actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking, or as a derivative, or financial instruments which upon initial recognition are designated 
by the Group at fair value through profit or loss. Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are 
initially recorded and subsequently measured at fair value. The Group uses quoted market prices to 
determine fair value for the Group’s financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss. Fair value 
adjustment on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated 
income statement for the period. The Group does not reclassify financial instruments in or out of this 
category while they are held. The main Group’s aim is using the fair value option is to eliminate or 
significantly reduce discrepancies in the accounting treatment of certain financial assets and liabilities. 
 
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage currency and liquidity risks. They 
include forwards on foreign currency and interest rate caps. Derivative financial instruments are 
entered by the Group are not qualified for hedge accounting.  
 
Loans to customers 
 
Loans to customers are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market other than those classified in other categories of financial assets. 
 
Loans granted by the Group with fixed maturities are initially recognized at fair value plus related 
transaction costs. Subsequently, the loan carrying value is measured using the effective interest method. 
Loans to customers that do not have fixed maturities are accounted for under the effective interest method 
based on expected maturity. Loans to customers are carried net of any allowance for impairment losses. 
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Write off of loans and advances 
 
Loans and advances are written off against allowance for impairment losses in case of uncollectibility 
of loans and advances, including through repossession of collateral. Loans and advances are written  
off after management has exercised all possibilities available to collect amounts due to the Group and 
after the Group has sold all available collateral.  
 
Allowance for impairment losses 
 
The Group accounts for impairment losses of financial assets when there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.  Impairment losses are measured as the 
difference between carrying amounts and the present value of expected future cash flows, including 
amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate, for financial assets which are carried at amortized cost. If in a subsequent period 
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. 
For financial assets carried at cost, the impairment losses are measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted 
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not 
reversed. 
 
The determination of impairment losses is based on an analysis of the risk assets and reflects the 
amount which, in the judgment of management, is adequate to provide for losses incurred. Provisions 
are made as a result of an individual appraisal of risk assets for financial assets that are individually 
significant, and an individual or collective assessment for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. 
 
The change in impairment losses is charged to profit either through allowance account (financial assets 
that are carried at amortized cost) or direct write-off (financial assets carried at cost). The total of  
the impairment losses is deducted in arriving at assets as shown in consolidated the balance sheet. 
Factors that the Group considers in determining whether it has objective evidence that an impairment 
loss has been incurred include information about the debtors’ or issuers’ liquidity, solvency and 
business and financial risk exposures, levels of and trends in delinquencies for similar financial assets, 
national and local economic trends and conditions, and the fair value of collateral and guarantees. 
These and other factors may, either individually or taken together, provide sufficient objective evidence 
that an impairment loss has been incurred in a financial asset or group of financial assets. 
 
It should be understood that estimates of losses involve an exercise of judgment. While it is possible 
that in particular periods the Group may sustain losses which are substantial relative for impairment 
losses, it is the judgment of management that the impairment losses are adequate to absorb losses 
incurred on risk assets, at the balance sheet date. 
 
Finance leases 
 
Financial leases are leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership 
of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. Whether a lease is a finance lease or  
an operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the form of the contract.  
 
The Group as a lessor presents finance leases as loans and initially measures them in the amount equal 
to net investment in the lease. Subsequently the recognition of finance income is based on a pattern 
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment in the finance lease. 
 
Before commencement of the lease property, plant and equipment purchased for future transfer to 
financial lease is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as property, plant and 
equipment purchased to transfer to finance lease at cost. 
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Investments held to maturity 
 
Investments held to maturity are debt securities with determinable or fixed payments. The Group has 
the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Such securities are carried at amortized cost, 
less any allowance for impairment. Amortized discounts are recognized in interest income over the 
period to maturity using the effective interest method. 
 
Investments available-for-sale 
 
Investments available-for-sale represent equity investments that are intended to be held for an indefinite 
period of time. Such securities are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequently the securities are 
measured at fair value, with such re-measurement recognized directly in equity until sold when 
gain/loss previously recorded in equity recycles through the consolidated income statement, except 
for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains or losses and interest income accrued using the 
effective interest method, which are recognized directly in the consolidated income statement. The 
Group uses quoted market prices to determine the fair value for the Group’s investments available-for-
sale. If the market for investments is not active, the Group establishes fair value by using a valuation 
technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is 
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation 
technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that technique has been 
demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the Group 
uses that technique. Dividends received are included in dividend income in the consolidated income 
statement. 
 
Non-marketable equity securities are stated at cost, less impairment losses, if any, unless fair value 
can be reliably measured. 
 
When there is objective evidence that such securities have been impaired, the cumulative loss previously 
recognized in equity is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated income statement for 
the period. Reversals of such impairment losses on debt instruments, which are objectively related to 
events occurring after the impairment, are recognized in the consolidated income statement for the 
period. Reversals of such impairment losses on equity instruments are not recognized in the 
consolidated income statement. 
 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are carried at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any recognized impairment loss. Depreciation on assets under construction and 
those not placed in service commences from the date the assets are ready for their intended use. 
 
Depreciation is charged on the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
and is designed to write off assets over their useful economic lives. It is calculated on a straight line 
basis at the following annual prescribed rates: 
 

  
Buildings and other real estate 2%-3% 
Furniture and computer equipment 12%-50% 
Intangible assets 20%-50% 

 
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the related leased asset. Expenses related to 
repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in operating expenses unless they qualify 
for capitalization. 
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The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts, and 
where carrying values exceed this estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their 
recoverable amount. 
 
An impairment is recognized in the respective period and is included in operating expenses. After the 
recognition of an impairment loss the depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets is adjusted in future periods to allocate the assets’ revised carrying value, less its 
residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
 
Land and buildings held for use in supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the 
consolidated balance sheet at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, 
determined from market-based evidence by appraisal undertaken by professional independent 
appraisers, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment 
losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not 
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date. 
 
Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is credited to the 
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it 
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense, in which case 
the increase is credited to the consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease previously 
charged. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is 
charged as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties 
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. 
 
Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to income. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a 
revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the properties revaluation reserve 
is transferred directly to retained earnings. 
 
Share based payments 
 
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are 
measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at the grant date. The fair value determined at the 
grant date is charged to profit. Further details on how the fair value of equity-settled share-based 
transactions has been determined can be found in Note 34.  
 
Taxation 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and deferred tax expense. 
 
The current tax expense is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit 
as reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or 
deductible. The Group’s current tax expense is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted during 
the reporting period. 
 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary 
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of 
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit. 
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control 
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 
in the foreseeable future. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 
settled or the asset is realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated income statement, 
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is 
also dealt with in equity. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset and reported net on the 
balance sheet if: 
 
 The Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current income tax assets against current 

income tax liabilities; and 
 Deferred income tax assets and the deferred income tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by 

the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity. 
 
Due to banks, customer accounts and subordinated debt 
 
Due to banks, customer accounts and subordinated debt are initially recognized at fair value. 
Subsequently, amounts due are stated at amortized cost and any difference between net proceeds and 
the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated income statement over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method. 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 
 
Financial guarantee contracts issued and letters of credit 
 
Financial guarantee contracts and letters of credit issued by the Group are credit insurance that provides 
for specified payments to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor 
fails to make payment when due under the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Such financial 
guarantee contracts and letters of credit issued are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently they are 
measured at the higher of (a) the amount recognized as a provision and (b) the amount initially recognized 
less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization of initial premium revenue received over the financial 
guarantee contracts or letter of credit issued. 
 
Share capital and share premium 
 
Contributions to share capital are recognized at their cost. Share premium represents the excess of 
contributions over the nominal value of the shares issued.  Gains and losses on sales of treasury stock 
are charged or credited to share premium.  
 
External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination, 
are deducted from equity net of any related income taxes.  
 
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity as a reduction in the period in which they are 
declared. Dividends that are declared after the balance sheet date are treated as a subsequent event 
under International Accounting Standard 10 “Events after the Balance Sheet Date” (“IAS 10”) and 
disclosed accordingly.     
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Retirement and other benefit obligations 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Georgian legislation, the Group withholds amounts of 
pension contributions from employee salaries and pays them to the state pension fund. In addition such 
pension system provides for calculation of current payments by the employer as a percentage of current 
total disbursements to staff.  Such expense is charged in the period the related salaries are earned.  
Upon retirement all retirement benefit payments are made by state pension fund.  The Group does 
not have any pension arrangements separate from the State pension system of Georgia.  In addition, 
the Group has no post-retirement benefits or other significant compensated benefits requiring 
accrual. 
 
Recognition of income and expense 
 
Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or  
a financial liability or group of financial assets or financial liabilities and of allocating the interest 
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset  
or financial liability. 
 
Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down (partly written down) 
as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest 
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. 
 
Interests earned on assets at fair value are classified within interest income. 
 
Loan origination fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment 
to the effective interest rate of the loan. Where it is probable that a loan commitment will lead to a specific 
lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, 
and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the resulting loan. Where it is unlikely 
that a loan commitment will lead to a specific lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees are 
recognized in the consolidated income statement over the remaining period of the loan commitment. 
Where a loan commitment expires without resulting in a loan, the loan commitment fee is recognized 
in the consolidated income statement on expiry. Loan servicing fees are recognized as revenue as the 
services are provided. All other commissions are recognized when services are provided. 
 
Foreign currency translation 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Georgian Lari at 
the appropriate spot rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions 
are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Profits and losses 
arising from these translations are included in net gain on foreign exchange operations. 
 
Rates of exchange 
 
The exchange rates at the year-end used by the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements are as follows: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Georgian Lari/1 US Dollar 1.592  1.714 
Georgian Lari/1 Euro 2.332  2.256 
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Offset of financial assets and liabilities 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net on the consolidated balance sheet when the 
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the Group intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In accounting for 
a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the Group does not offset the 
transferred asset and the associated liability. 
 
Adoption of new standards 
 
In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) and the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (the IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and 
effective for reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2007. The adoption of these new and revised 
Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies 
that have affected the amounts reported for the current or prior years except for the effect of 
application of IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure” (“IFRS 7”). 
 
IFRS 7 is effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2007. IFRS 7 establishes  
new requirements and recommendations on financial instrument disclosure. Adoption of IFRS 7  
did not affect the classification and measurement of Group’s financial instruments in the consolidated 
financial statements. Additional information was disclosed in the financials statements for the current 
and comparative reporting periods as required by IFRS 7. 
 
According to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements – Disclosures (IAS 1), Group shall disclose 
information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate the entities objectives, policies 
and processes for managing capital. 
 
At the date of these financial statements IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” was issued but not yet effective for 
these financial statements. It is effective from 1 January 2009 and will replace IAS 14 “Operating Segments”. 
The management is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of this Standard in future period. 
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4. PRIOR PERIOD RECLASSIFICATIONS  
 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the financial statements as at 31 December 2006 and for the 
year then ended to conform to the presentation as at 31 December 2007 and for the year then ended as 
current year presentation provides better view of the financial position of the Group. 
 
Nature of reclassification Amount  Balance 

sheet/Income 
statement line as 
per the previous 

report 

 Balance 
sheet/Income 

statement line as 
per current report 

Subordinated debt transferred from due to banks and 
financial institutions to subordinated debt 

25,065 

 

Due to banks 
and financial 
institutions 

 Subordinated debt 

Net investments in finance lease included in loans to 
customers 
 

15,079 

 

Net investments 
in finance lease 

 Loans to customers 
 

Provisions included in other liabilities 
 

7,010 
 

Provisions  Other liabilities 

Provisions for losses on safe deposit boxes and for 
penalties for the incompliance with the Anti Money 
Laundering Law reporting requirements transferred 
from other liabilities to provisions 
 

4,949 

 

Other liabilities  Provisions 

Items of property and equipment transferred from 
inventory to property and equipment 

1,979 
 

Other assets  Property and 
equipment 

Loan origination fees transferred from fee and 
commission income to interest income 

1,619 

 

Fee and 
commission 
income 

 Interest income 

Prepaid commission expense transferred from other 
assets to loans from banks and financial institutions 
 

1,154 

 

Other assets  Due to banks and 
financial 
institutions 

Prepaid commission income transferred from other 
liabilities to loans to customers 
 

1,090 

 

Other liabilities  Loans to 
customers 

Intangible assets included in other assets 
 

543 
 

Intangible assets  Other assets 

Investments in associates and jointly controlled 
enterprises included in other assets 

442 

 

Investments in 
associates and 
jointly 
controlled 
enterprises 

 Other assets 

Provision for impairment of investment in UFC 
International Limited transferred from share in losses 
of associates to provision for impairment losses on 
other transactions 
 

408 

 

Share in losses 
of associates 

 Provision for 
impairment losses 
on other 
transactions 

Revaluation of derivative financial instrument 
(interest rate cap) transferred from fee and 
commission expense to net loss on financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

292 

 

Fee and 
commission 
expense 

 Net loss on 
financial assets 
and liabilities at 
fair value through 
profit or loss 

Interest income on investments held-to-maturity 
transferred from net gain on investments held to 
maturity to interest income 
 

117 

 

Net gain on 
investments 
held-to-maturity 

 Interest income 

Share in gain of GPIH JSC (associate) transferred 
from interest income to share in gain of associates 
 

114 

 

Interest income  Share in gain of 
associates 

      
Investment in TBC Broker LLC (non-consolidated 
subsidiary) transferred from investment in associates 
to other assets 
 

20 

 

Investments in 
associates 

 Other assets 

Investment in non-business foundations transferred 
from investments available-for-sale to other assets 

12 

 

Investments 
available-for-
sale 

 Other assets 
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5. GROUP REORGANIZATION 
 
In June 2007 the Group acquired 45% share in JSC United Financial Corporation in addition to 45% 
possessed as at 31 December 2006. 
 
The net assets of JSC United Financial Corporation as at the date of this partial acquisition were as 
follows: 
  
Cash 11 
Property, plant and equipment 571 
Accounts receivable and other current assets 120 
Other non-current assets 261 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (415) 
Long-term loans (75) 
 473 
  
Share of net assets acquired 45% 
Value of net assets acquired 213 
  
Goodwill 1,237 
  
Total consideration, satisfied by cash 1,450 
  
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:  
Cash consideration paid 1,450 
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 11 
  
 1,439 
 
 
The Group started to consolidate JSC United Financial Corporation since June 2007. 
 
The amount of the acquiree’s profit since the acquisition date included in the acquirer’s profit for the 
period amounted to GEL 359 thousand. 
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6. NET INTEREST INCOME 
 
 Year ended  

31 December 
2007 

 Year ended  
31 December 

2006 
    
Interest income comprises:    
Interest income on assets recorded at amortized cost:    

- interest income on assets that has been written down as a result of 
an impairment loss based on collective assessment 129,021  84,427 

- interest income on assets that has been written down as a result of 
an impairment loss based on individual assessment 16,044  4,432 

- interest income on unimpaired assets 20,261  5,370 
    
Total interest income 165,326  94,229 
    
Interest income on assets recorded at amortized cost comprises:    

Interest on loans to customers 147,065  85,290 
Interest on loans and advances to banks 7,277  5,360 
Interest on finance lease 4,239  3,063 
Interest on investments held-to-maturity 6,721  491 
Other 24  25 

Total interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized cost 165,326  94,229 
    
Interest expense comprises:    
Interest on liabilities recorded at amortized cost (81,353)  (39,346) 
    
Total interest expense (81,353)  (39,346) 
    
Interest expense on liabilities recorded at amortized cost comprise:    

Interest on customer accounts (37,318)  (20,397) 
Interest on deposits from banks (44,035)  (18,949) 

Total interest expense on financial assets recorded at amortized cost (81,353)  (39,346) 
    
Net interest income before provision for impairment losses on 

interest bearing assets 83,973  54,883 
 
 

7. ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, OTHER PROVISIONS 
 
The movements in allowance for impairment losses on interest earning assets were as follows: 
 

 Loans to 
customers 

 

   
31 December 2005 8,740  
   

Provision 9,942  
Write-off of assets (745)  
Recoveries of assets previously written off 398  
   
31 December 2006 18,335  
   

Provision 26,494  
Write-off of assets (7,107)  
Recoveries of assets previously written off 2,053  
   
31 December 2007 39,775  
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The movements in allowances for impairment losses on other transactions were as follows: 
 

  Other 
assets 

 Guarantees  Other provisions  Total 

         
31 December 2005  45  1,091  902  2,038 

         
Provision  534  970  4,504  6,008 
Write-off of assets and provisions  (34)  -  (457) (491) 

         
31 December 2006  545  2,061  4,949  7,555 

         
Provision/ (Recovery of 

provision)  838  (984)  (1,655)  (1,801) 
Write-off of assets and provisions  (166)  -  (3,272) (3,438) 

         
31 December 2007  1,217  1,077  22  2,316 
 
 
Allowance for impairment losses on assets are deducted from the respective assets. Provision for 
off-balance sheet transactions are recorded in liabilities. 
 
 

8. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 
PROFIT OR LOSS 
 
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprises: 
 
 Year ended  

31 December 
2007 

 Year ended  
31 December 

2006 

Net gain on operations with financial assets held-for-trading 29  - 
Net loss on operations with derivative financial instruments (875)  (292) 
    
Total net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss (846)  (292) 

Net gain on operations with financial assets held-for-trading 
comprise:    

Unrealized income on revaluation 29  - 

Total net gain/(loss) on operations with financial assets held-for-
trading 29  - 

 
 

9. NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS 
 
Net gain on foreign exchange operations comprises: 
 
 Year ended 

31 December 
2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
    
Dealing, net 16,954  9,694 
Translation differences, net (1,015)  41 
    
Total net gain on foreign exchange operations 15,939  9,735 
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10. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE 

 
Fee and commission income and expense comprise: 
 
 Year ended 

31 December 
2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
    
Fee and commission income:    
Documentary operations 8,135  3,549 
Plastic cards operations 5,633  3,412 
Settlements 4,979  4,266 
Cash operations 3,967  3,175 
Foreign exchange operations 385  201 
Other 2,480  1,669 
    
Total fee and commission income 25,579  16,272 
    
Fee and commission expense:    
Plastic cards services (2,006)  (1,073) 
Settlements (732)  (1,079) 
Documentary operations (577)  (901) 
Communication services (461)  (176) 
Cash operations (151)  (259) 
Foreign currency operations (51)  (33) 
Other (249)  (671) 
    
Total fee and commission expense (4,227)  (4,192) 
 
 

11. OTHER INCOME 
 
Other income comprises: 
 
 Year ended 

31 December 
2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
    
Revenue from fines 6,346  1,955 
Reimbursement from insurer 1,764  42 
Reimbursement of interest rate cap 530  47 
Loan administration fee 311  91 
Share in losses of associates and jointly controlled enterprises (1,174)  (410) 
Impairment of goodwill (479)  - 
Reimbursed social taxes 824  - 
Other  1,535  492 
    
 9,657  2,217 
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12. OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
Operating expenses comprise: 
 
 Year ended 

31 December 
2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
    
Staff costs 35,697  17,534 
Depreciation and amortization 5,956  3,205 
Advertising costs 5,233  2,660 
Professional services 3,715  1,321 
Occupancy and rent 2,412  710 
Communications and supplies 2,079  1,148 
Transportation and vehicle maintenance 1,040  741 
Stationery and other office expenses 1,003  544 
Taxes, other than income tax 857  442 
Security expenses 575  461 
Real estate insurance 574  410 
Business trip expenses 529  339 
Training 364  214 
Other expenses 7,093  3,021 
    
Total operating expenses 67,127  32,750 
 
 

13. INCOME TAXES 
 
The Group provides for taxes based on the tax accounts maintained and prepared in accordance with 
the tax regulations of Georgia which differs from International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
The Group is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to non-tax deductibility of certain 
expenses and a tax free regime for certain income. 
 
Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temporary 
differences as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 relate mostly to different methods of income and 
expense recognition as well as to recorded values of certain assets. 
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Temporary differences as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 comprise: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Deductible temporary differences:    
Due from banks and loans to customers 3,861  6,409 
Other assets 464  485 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 390  67 
Other liabilities 14  4,821 
    
Total deductible temporary differences 4,729  11,782 
    
Taxable temporary differences:    
Property, plant and equipment 96,499  22,075 
Due to banks 135  1,154 
    
Total taxable temporary differences 96,634  23,229 
    
Net deferred taxable temporary differences (91,905)  (11,447) 
Net deferred tax liability at the statutory tax rate 15%  20% 
    
Net deferred tax liability (13,786)  (2,289) 
 
 
Relationships between tax expenses and accounting profit for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 
2006 are explained as follows: 
 
 Year ended 

31 December 
2007 

 Year ended 
31 December 

2006 
    
Profit before income tax 38,446  29,900 
    
Tax at the statutory tax rate (20%) 7,689  5,980 
Effect of change in tax rate (4,582)  - 
Tax effect of permanent differences 6,768  1,339 
    
Income tax expense 9,875  7,319 
    
Current income tax expense 2,122  7,902 
Deferred income tax expense 7,753  (583) 
    
Income tax expense 9,875  7,319 
 
 
Deferred income tax liabilities 2007  2006 
    
Beginning of the period 2,289  2,872 
    
Tax effect of changes in property, plant and equipment revaluation 

reserve 3,744  - 
Increase/(decrease) in income tax liability for the year charged to profit 7,753  (583) 
    
End of the period 13,786  2,289 
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14. CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE NATIONAL BANK OF GEORGIA 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Cash 71,896  47,939 
Balances with the National Bank of Georgia 111,937  149,486 
    
Total cash and balances with the National Bank of Georgia 183,833  197,425 
 
 
The balances with the National Bank of Georgia (“NBG”) as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 include 
GEL 89,388 thousand and GEL 63,305 thousand, respectively, which represent the obligatory 
minimum reserve deposits with the NBG. The Bank is required to maintain the reserve balance at the 
NBG at all times. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows comprise the following: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Cash and balances with the NBG 183,833  197,425 
Due from banks in OECD countries  4,972  33,065 
    
Less minimum reserve deposits and foreign currency deposits with  

the NBG (89,388)  (63,305) 
    
Total cash and cash equivalents 99,417  167,185 
 
 

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit at loss comprise: 
 
 31 December  31 December 
 2007  2006 
    
Financial assets held-for-trading:    

Shares 135  - 
    
Total financial assets held-for-trading 135  - 
    
Hedge instruments:    
      Interest rate cap 228  1,177 
    
Total hedge instruments 228  1,177 
    
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 363  1,177 
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Financial assets held-for-trading comprise: 
 
 Ownership 

interest 
 31 December 

2007 
 

     
Shares:     
Ordinary shares of JSC “People’s Bank of Georgia” 0.30%  127  
Ordinary shares of JSC “Printing Centre” 0.11%  8  
     
Total shares:   135  

     
Total financials assets held-for-trading   135  

 
 
Derivative financial instruments and financial assets at fair value through profit at loss comprise: 
 
 31 December 2007 31 December 2006 

  Asset  Liability  Asset  Liability 
         
Foreign exchange contracts         
Forwards  11,657  11,692  3,384  3,383 
         
Hedge Instruments         
Interest rate cap  228  -  1,177  - 
         
  11,885  11,692  4,561  3,383 
 
 
In order to manage the risk of floating market interest rates on funds attracted from International 
Financial Institutions, the Bank has concluded two Interest Rate Cap agreements with AG 
Commerzbank for a notional amount of US $ 4,000 thousand, and US $ 19,000 thousand. The upper 
interest rates on floating USD-LIBOR-BBA concluded by both parties were 3.5% and 4.25%, 
respectively. The fixed amount of premium was US $ 78 thousand and US $ 65 thousand, 
respectively. The hedge instrument has been revalued in accordance with the quoted market prices of 
similar hedge instruments as at the year end. 
 
The fair values of foreign exchange contracts approximated their notional amounts as at 31 
December 2006 and 2007. The foreign exchange contracts are accounted on the net basis. 
 
 

16. DUE FROM BANKS 
 
Due from banks comprise: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Time deposits with other banks 27,035  3,840 
Correspondent accounts with other banks 52,484  44,007 
Other amounts 1,475  1,783 
    
Total due from banks 80,994  49,630 
 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group had due from 9 and 2 banks, respectively, which 
individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s equity. 
 
As of 31 December 2007 and 2006 accrued interest expense included in due from banks amounted to 
GEL 146 thousand and GEL 558 thousand, respectively. 
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During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group simultaneously placed with and received 
short-term funds from Georgian banks in different currencies. The Bank did not have such deposits 
as at 31 December 2007 and 2006. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 included in balances due from banks are guarantee deposits placed 
by the Group for its operations in the amount of GEL 1,460 thousand and GEL 1,760 thousand, 
respectively. 
 
During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group simultaneously placed with and received 
short-term funds from foreign banks in different currencies. As at 31 December 2007 and 2006,  
the Group placed equivalent of GEL 46,647 thousand and GEL 10,212 thousand, respectively, which 
were received from the same bank. 
 
 

17. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS 
 
Loans to customers comprise: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Loans to customers 1,168,103  591,256 
Net investments in finance lease 19,950  15,261 
    
Less allowance for impairment losses (39,775)  (18,335) 
    
Total loans to customers 1,148,278  588,182 
 
 
Movements in allowances for impairment losses for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are 
disclosed in Note 7. 
 
As of 31 December 2007 and 2006 accrued interest expense included in loans to customers 
amounted to GEL 11,022 thousand and GEL 5,986 thousand, respectively. 
 



Tibisi bankiTibisi banki wliuri angarwliuri angariSi i 200720078484

 

The below table summarized the amount of loans secured by collateral, rather than the fair value of 
the collateral itself: 
 

 31 December 
2007 

 31 December 
2006 

    
Loans collateralized by pledge of real estate or rights thereon 604,127  156,982 
Loans collateralized by pledge of inventories and equipment 252,284  175,784 
Loans collateralized by pledge of corporate shares 45,700  37,134 
Loans collateralized by cash 24,878  18,345 
Loans secured by gold 13,409  11,669 
Loans collateralized by pledge of guarantees -  26,284 
Other collateral 131,539  130,557 
Unsecured loans 96,166  34,501 
    
Less allowance for impairment losses (39,403)  (18,153) 
    
Total loans to customers 1,128,700  573,103 
 

 31 December 
2007 

 31 December 
2006 

    
Analysis by sector:    
Trade and service 463,628  279,970 
Individuals 300,349  147,303 
Real estate and construction 141,521  46,661 
Manufacturing 127,787  66,758 
Communication 43,565  30,432 
Agriculture 25,082  1,060 
Energy 18,162  4,524 
Pawn loans 13,409  11,669 
Other 34,600  2,879 
    
Less allowance for impairment losses (39,403)  (18,153) 
    
Total loans to customers 1,128,700  573,103 
 
 
During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group received non-financial assets by 
taking possession of collateral it held as security. As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 such assets in 
amount of GEL 2,349 thousand and GEL 439 thousand, respectively, are included in other assets. 
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Loans to individuals comprise the following products: 
 

 31 December 
2007 

 31 December 
2006 

    
Mortgage loans 137,598  76,005 
Consumer loans 82,442  29,115 
Car loans 24,308  6,473 
Instalments 22,409  2,140 
Business loans 11,947  15,999 
Other 21,645  17,571 
    
Less allowance for impairment losses (10,704)  (745) 
    
Total loans to individuals 289,645  146,558 
 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group granted loans to 21 and 10 customers, totaling GEL 
292,937 thousand and GEL 114,638 thousand, respectively, which exceeded 90% of the Group’s 
equity. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 a significant amount of loans (100% of total portfolio) is granted 
Georgian companies and individuals, which represents a significant geographical concentration in 
one region. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 loans to customers included loans in amount of GEL 40,577 
thousand and GEL 8,511 thousand, respectively, whose terms have been renegotiated. Otherwise 
these loans would be past due or impaired. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 loans to customers included loans in amount of GEL 126,186 
thousand and GEL 36,226 thousand, respectively, that were individually determined to be impaired. 
 
The components of net investment in finance lease as of 31 December 2007 and 2006 are as follows: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Not later than one year 14,693  8,987 
From one year to five years 12,708  11,721 

  
Minimum lease payments 27,401 20,708 
Less unearned finance lease income (7,451) (5,447) 

   
Net investment in finance leases  19,950 15,261 
Less allowance for impairment  (372) (182) 

   
Net investment in finance leases  19,578  15,079 
 
 
The present value of future minimum lease payments due from customer under finance lease as at 31 
December 2007 and 2006 are as follows: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Current portion 10,585  6,651 
Long-term portion 8,993  8,428 
    
Total present value of future minimum lease payments 19,578  15,079 

 



Tibisi bankiTibisi banki wliuri angarwliuri angariSi i 200720078686

 

 

18. INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 
 
Investments available-for-sale comprise: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Equity securities 5,219  4,590 
    
Total investments available-for-sale 5,219  4,590 
 
 
 Ownership 

interest 
 31 December 

2007 
 Ownership 

interest 
 31 December 

2006 

Equity securities        
Nikora LLC 10.00%  1,902  4.00%  960 
GRDC JSC 1.63%  1,772  1.63%  1,772 
Caucasus Online LLC 9.94%  1,332  4.90%  568 
Creditinfo Georgia JSC 16.63%  95  15.30%  92 
Interbank Exchange Market 

JSC 8.33%  50  8.33%  50 
American Academy in Tbilisi 

JSC 5.38%  50  5.38%  50 
Tbilisi Free University LLC 20%  7  -  - 
Georgian Card LLC 0.15%  5  0.17%  5 
SWIFT 0.00%  3  0.00%  3 
Central Depositor of Georgian 

Securities JSC 0.30%  3  0.30%  3 
Mukhranis Valley LLC -  -  17.00%  1,087 

Total investments available-
for-sale   5,219    4,590 

 
 

19. INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY 
 
 Interest to 

nominal 
% 

 31 December 
2007 

 Interest to 
nominal 

% 

 31 December 
2006 

NBG Deposit certificates 10%  114,596  11%  50,209 
Ministry of Finance Treasury 

bills -  -  13%  44 

Total investments held to 
maturity   114,596    50,253 

 
 

20. GOODWILL 
 
 2007 
  
  
At the beginning of the period - 
Recognized on acquisition of a subsidiary (JSC United Financial Corporation) 1,237 
Impairment loss (479) 
  
At the end of the period 758 
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 Buildings 

and other 
real estate 

 Furniture 
and 

equipment 

 Construction 
in 

progress 

 Total 

At initial/revalued cost        

31 December 2005 29,102  12,154  1,987  43,243 

Additions 96  5,997  12,267  18,360 
Transfers 1,997  -  (1,997)  - 
Disposals (6)  (186)  -  (192) 

31 December 2006 31,189  17,965  12,257  61,411 

Additions 501  18,692  23,046  42,239 
Revaluation 20,284  -  6,466  26,750 
Acquisition of subsidiaries -  1,278  -  1,278 
Transfers 8,507  (628)  (7,879)  - 
Disposals (1,104)  (1,377)  (48)  (2,529) 

31 December 2007 59,377  35,930  33,842  129,149 

Accumulated depreciation        

31 December 2005 1,382  3,881  -  5,263 

Charge for the year 748  2,328  -  3,076 
Eliminated on disposals -  (161)  -  (161) 
Transfers       - 

31 December 2006 2,130  6,048  -  8,178 

Charge for the year 1,058  4,471  -  5,529 
Acquisition of subsidiaries -  710  -  710 
Eliminated on revaluation (2,374)  -  -  (2,374) 
Eliminated on disposals (235)  (829)  -  (1,064) 

31 December 2007 579  10,400  -  10,979 

Net book value        

31 December 2007 58,798  25,530  33,842  118,170 

31 December 2006 29,059  11,917  12,257  53,233 
 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 included in property, plant and equipment were fully depreciated 
assets of GEL 4,204 thousands and GEL 3,549 thousands, respectively. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 the buildings and other real estate and construction in progress owned by the 
Group were revalued to market prices according to the opinion of the independent appraiser. As a 
result, carrying value of these building amounted to GEL 82,970 thousand. If the buildings were 
accounted at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, its carrying value 
would be GEL 53,845 thousand as at 31 December 2007. 
 
Buildings owned by the Group were revalued by independent appraisers as at 31 December 2007.  
The following methods were used for the estimation of their fair value: discounted cash flow method 
(income approach), integrated cost estimation method (cost based method), method of sales comparison 
(comparative approach). For the estimation of the final value, certain weights were assigned to the 
results obtained using different approaches, depending on the degree to which the estimates met the 
following characteristics: reliability and completeness of the information, specifies the estimated 
property and other. 
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22. OTHER ASSETS 
 
Other assets comprise: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 

Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiary 13,371  - 
Prepayments for purchase of leasing assets 9,446  1,816 
Prepayments for fixed assets 5,642  2,284 
Repossessed assets 2,349  439 
Prepaid expenses 2,112  1,268 
Intangible assets 2,199  543 
Receivable from selling of investment 1,277  - 
Tax settlements, other than income tax 970  155 
Trade debtors 923  2,311 
Inventories 575  291 
Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries 428  428 
Investments in associates and jointly controlled enterprises -  442 
Other 2,718  185 

Less allowance for impairment losses (1,217)  (545) 

Total other assets 40,793  9,617 
 
 
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiary represent money prepaid for the acquisition of 75% share in 
Soa Kredit, Azerbaijan based microfinance organization. The acquisition was executed subsequent to 
the year end. Please refer to Note 32. 
 
 Intangible 

assets 

At cost  

31 December 2005 1,209 

Additions 326 

31 December 2006 1,535 

Additions 1,826 
Acquisition of subsidiaries 401 

31 December 2007 3,762 

Accumulated amortization  

31 December 2005 863 

Charge for the year 129 

31 December 2006 992 

Charge for the year 427 
Acquisition of subsidiaries 144 

31 December 2007 1,563 

Net book value  

31 December 2007 2,199 

31 December 2006 543 
 
Intangible assets include software and licenses
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The following investments in associates were recorded in the consolidated financial statements using 
the equity method as at 31 December 2006: 
 
  31 December 2006 
  Ownership 

interest 
 Carrying value 

JSC GPIH  20%  442 
United Financial Corporation  45%  - 

    442 
 
 
The movements of investments in associates comprise: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
At the beginning of the period 442  823 
    
Purchase cost 23  29 
Contribution to equity of joint venture (465)  - 
Share in results of associates transferred to subsidiary (196)  - 
Share in results of associates 196  (410) 
    
At the end of the period -  442 
 
 
As more fully describe in Note 5, the investment in the United Financial Corporation increased in 
2007 and the Bank obtained full control over this subsidiary, thus making United Financial 
Corporation a consolidated subsidiary.  
 
In 2007, as per Agreement about Incorporation of Private Company with Limited Liability, the Bank 
and TBIH Financial Service Group N.V. incorporated new jointly ventured company with limited 
liability GPI B.V with 50%-50% of ownership. The Bank has transferred all shares of GPIH to the 
newly established GPI B.V. GPI B.V. is treated as a jointly controlled enterprise. 
 
The movements of investments in jointly controlled enterprise comprise: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 

   
At the beginning of the period -  
   
Purchase cost 1,370  
Share in results of jointly controlled enterprise (1,370)  
   
At the end of the period -  
 
 
Purchase cost of GEL 1,370 comprises of contributions of cash in the amount of GEL 905 and 
investment in GPIH in the amount of GEL 465 thousand. 
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23. DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

 
Due to banks and financial institutions comprise: 
 

 
31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Correspondent accounts of other banks 6,465  20,733 
Loans from banks and financial institutions 433,041  206,873 
Deposits of banks 85,892  10,441 
    
Total due to banks 525,398  238,047 
 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the due to banks in the amounts of GEL 295,799 thousand (62%) 
and GEL 195,681 thousand (86%), respectively, were due to 4 banks, which represents significant 
concentration. 
 
As of 31 December 2007 and 2006 accrued interest expense included in due to banks amounted to 
GEL 11,139 thousand and GEL 5,020 thousand, respectively. 
During 2007 and 2006 the Group simultaneously placed with and received short-term funds from 
foreign banks in different currencies. 
 
 

24. CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS 
 
Customer accounts comprise: 
 

 31 December 
2007 

 31 December 
2006 

    
Time deposits 327,729  232,388 
Repayable on demand 451,812  319,780 
    
Total customer accounts 779,541  552,168 
 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 customer accounts amounted to GEL 33,356 thousand and GEL 
9,322 thousand, respectively, were held as security against letters of credit issued and other 
transaction related contingent obligations. As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 customer accounts 
amounted to GEL 46,270 thousand and GEL 25,804 thousand, respectively, were held as security 
against guarantees issued. 
 
As of 31 December 2007 and 2006 accrued interest expense included in customer accounts amounted 
to GEL 6,352 thousand and GEL 5,721 thousand, respectively. 
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The Bank had no significant concentration within customer accounts as at 31 December 2007 and 
2006. 
 

 31 December 
2007 

 31 December 
2006 

    
Analysis by sector:    
Individuals 436,675  308,196 
Trade and service 209,145  122,420 
Transport and communication 21,990  22,724 
Construction 23,072  5,274 
Energy 7,358  4,465 
Mining and natural resource processing 2,419  2,740 
Agriculture 174  152 
Government 551  1,934 
Other 78,157  84,263 
    
Total customer accounts 779,541  552,168 
 
 

25. OTHER LIABILITIES 
 
Other liabilities comprise: 
 

 31 December 
2007 

 31 December 
2006 

    
Accrued expenses 7,157  4,999 
Security deposits for finance lease 2,575  487 
Provisions 1,099  7,010 
Sundry creditors 726  952 
Taxes payable, other than income tax 749  269 
Suspense amounts -  187 
Other 716  220 
    
Total other liabilities 13,022  14,124 
 
 
Movements on provisions for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are disclosed in Note 7. 
 
 

26. SUBORDINATED DEBT 
 
 Currency  Maturity 

date 
year 

 Interest 
rate 
% 

 31 
December 

2007 

 31 
December 

2006 
          
Subordinated debt from related parties 

(Deutshe Investitions and 
Entwicklungesellschaft mbH.) USD 

 

2012 

 

6.3%+LIBOR 

 

16,766  18,040 
Subordinated debt from related parties 

(International Financial Corporation) USD 
 

2011 
 

4.5%+LIBOR 
 

6,502  7,025 
Subordinated debt from other banks USD  2014  6.25%+LIBOR  32,613  - 
          
       55,881  25,065 
 
In the event of bankruptcy or liquidation of the Group, repayment of this debt is subordinate to the 
repayments of the Group’s liabilities to all other creditors. 
 
As of 31 December 2007 and 2006 accrued interest expense included in subordinated debt amounted 
to GEL 1,766 thousand and GEL 1,076 thousand, respectively. 
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27. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 
 
As of 31 December 2007 and 2006 authorized, issued and paid-in share capital consisted of 117,000 
and 53,851 ordinary shares, respectively, with par value of GEL 100 each. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 the Group’s share capital comprised of the following number of shares of 
GEL 100 each: 
 
 Authorized 

share capital 
 Unpaid share 

capital 
 Total share 

capital 
      
Ordinary shares 118,133  (1,133)  117,000 
      
      
 
 
As at 31 December 2006 the Group’s share capital comprised of the following number of shares of 
GEL 100 each: 
 
 Authorized 

share capital 
 Unpaid share 

capital 
 Total share 

capital 
      
Ordinary shares 56,681  (2,830)  53,851 
      
      
 
 
The below table provides a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as of 31 December 2007 
and 2006: 
 
 Preference 

shares 
 Ordinary shares 

    
31 December 2005 6,409  47,442 
Convert of shares (6,409)  6,409 
    
31 December 2006 -  53,851 
Issue of shares -  63,149 
    
31 December 2007 -  117,000 
 
 
Share premium represents an excess of contributions received over the nominal value of shares 
issued. 
 
The amount of dividends declared subsequently to 31 December 2006 amounted to GEL 2,000 
thousand. 
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28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
In the normal course of business, the Group is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet 
risk in order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of credit 
risk, are not reflected in the consolidated balance sheet. 
 
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit loss under contingent liabilities and commitments to extend 
credit, in the event of non-performance by the other party where all counterclaims, collateral or security 
prove valueless, is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments. 
 
The Group uses the same credit control and management policies in undertaking off-balance sheet 
commitments as it does for on-balance operations. 
 
Provision for losses on contingent liabilities amounted to GEL 1,069 thousand and GEL 2,061 
thousand as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006 the nominal or contract amounts were: 
 
 31 December 2007  31 December 2006 
 Nominal 

amount  
Nominal 
amount 

    
Contingent liabilities and credit commitments    
Guarantees issued and similar commitments, secured by cash 4,092  4,654 
Guarantees issued and similar commitments, not secured by 

cash 197,317  124,453 
Letters of Credit collateralised by the underlying shipments 40,857  22,601 
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines up to one year 50,734  40,666 
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines over one year 84,416  141 
Other commitments -  847 
    
Total contingent liabilities and credit commitments 377,416  193,362 
 
 
Extension of loans to customers within credit line limits is approved by the Group on a case-by-case 
basis and depends on borrowers’ financial performance, debt service and other conditions. As at 31 
December 2007 and 2006 such unused credit lines amounted to GEL 135,150 thousand and GEL 
40,807 thousand, respectively. 
 
Capital commitments – The Group had no material commitments for capital expenditures 
outstanding as at 31 December 2007 and 2006. 
 
Operating lease commitments – Where the Group is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments 
under non cancelable operating leases are as follows: 
 
 31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 
    
Not later than 1 year 56  53 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 519  928 
Later than 5 years 354  636 
    
Total operating lease commitments 929  1,617 
 
 
Legal proceedings – From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group 
are received from customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no material 
unaccrued losses will be incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial 
statements. 
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Taxation – Due to the presence in Georgian commercial legislation, and tax legislation in particular, 
of provisions allowing more than one interpretation, and also due to the practice developed in 
a generally unstable environment by the tax authorities of making arbitrary judgment of business 
activities, if a particular treatment based on Management’s judgment of the Group’s business activities 
was to be challenged by the tax authorities, the Group may by assessed additional taxes, penalties 
and interest.  Such uncertainty may relate to valuation of financial instruments, loss and impairment 
provisions and market level for deals’ pricing.  The Group believes that it has already made all tax 
payments, and therefore no allowance has been made in the financial statements.   
 
Operating environment – The Group’s principal business activities are within Georgia. Laws and 
regulations affecting the business environment in Georgia are subject to rapid changes and the Group’s 
assets and operations could be at risk due to negative changes in the political and business environment. 

 
 

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On 30 June 2007 the Bank has entered into the subscription and member’s agreements with the 
Shorebank International Ltd. on the potential acquisition of SOA Kredit - Azerbaijan based 
microfinance organization.  

In December 2007 the Bank has transferred the share purchase payment of USD equivalent of GEL 
13,371 (please refer to note 25). The payment was done for the share participation of 75% in SOA 
Kredit. However, as at 31 December 2007 this participation was subject to the approval of the 
Ministry of Taxes of the Republic of Azerbaijan. No charter registration, participation in the 
shareholder’s meetings and decision making could happen from the Bank’s side until the above 
approval.  

On 14 February 2008 Ministry of Taxes of the Republic of Azerbaijan approved the acquisition of 
SOA Kredit shares by the Bank. 

 
30. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 
Related parties or transactions with related parties, as defined by IAS 24 “Related party disclosures”, 
represent: 
 
(a) Parties that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries: control, or are controlled 

by, or are under common control with, the Group  (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow 
subsidiaries); have an interest in the Group that gives them significant influence over the Bank; 
and that have joint control over the Group; 

(b) Associates – enterprises on which the Group has significant influence and which is neither  
a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the investor; 

(c) Joint ventures in which the Group is a venturer; 
(d) Members of key management personnel of the Group or its parent;  
(e) Close members of the family of any individuals referred to in (a) or (d); 
(f) Parties that are entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which 

significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred 
to in (d) or (e). 
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In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 
relationship, and not merely the legal form. The Group had the following transactions outstanding as 
at 31 December 2007 and 2006 with related parties: 
 
 31 December 2007  31 December 2006 
 Related party 

balances 

 

Total category 
as per financial 

statements 
caption  

Related party 
balances 

 

Total category 
as per financial 

statements 
caption 

        
Loans to customers 19,573  1,148,278  21,270  588,182 
Other assets 3,378  40,793  648  9,617 
Due to banks 1,343  525,398  8,482  238,047 
Customer accounts 12,645  779,541  12,336  552,168 
Other liabilities 1,658  13,022  2,147  14,124 
Subordinated debt 23,268  55,881  25,065  25,065 
Commitments and contingencies 3,150  377,416  15,912  193,362 
        
 
 
 31 December 2007  31 December 2006 
 Related party 

transactions 

 

Total category 
as per financial 

statements 
caption  

Related party 
transactions 

 

Total category 
as per financial 

statements 
caption 

        
Key management personnel 

compensation:        
- short-term employee benefits 4,759  35,697  2,644  17,534 

        
 
 
Included in the consolidated income statement for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are 
the following amounts which arose due to transactions with related parties: 
 
 Year ended  

31 December 2007  
Year ended  

31 December 2006 
 Related party 

transactions 

 

Total category 
as per financial 

statements 
caption  

Related party 
transactions 

 

Total category 
as per financial 

statements 
caption 

        
Interest income 1,806  165,326  1,955  94,229 
        
Interest expense  (658)  (81,353)  (4,405)  (39,346) 
        
 
 

31. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 
 
The Group has an ownership-based compensation scheme for executives of the Group. As approved 
by shareholders at meeting held on 4 November 2005, General Director and a First Deputy General 
Director are granted options to purchase ordinary shares at a fixed price of GEL 100 per ordinary 
share.  
 
Each employee share option converts into one ordinary share of JSC TBC Bank on exercise at the 
nominal value of GEL 100 each. The options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights. 
Options may be exercised within five years.  
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In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement, options vest upon relevant decision of 
the Shareholders, which is based on the Management performance in terms of meeting the strategic 
goals of the Bank. These goals are not defined in any qualitative or quantitative terms. 
 
The fair value of the share options as at the grant date is GEL 2,520 per share. 
 
The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted at the beginning and end of the 
financial year: 
 

 
31 December 

2007 
 Number of 

options 
  

Balance at beginning of the financial year  2,834 
Granted during the financial year  - 

Exercised during the financial year  (1,701) 

Balance at end of the financial year 1,133 

 
 
The options exercised during the financial year are accounted in operating expenses within staff 
costs. 
 
 

32. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Estimated fair value disclosures of financial instruments are made in accordance with the requirements 
of IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure” and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement”. Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be 
exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, 
other than in forced or liquidation sale. The estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative 
of the amounts the Group could realize in a market exchange from the sale of its full holdings of  
a particular instrument. 
 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities compared with the corresponding carrying amount in 
the consolidated balance sheet of the Group is presented below: 
 
 31 December 2007  31 December 2006 
 Carrying value  Fair value  Carrying value  Fair value 
        
Cash and balances with the National 

Bank of Georgia 183,833  183,833  197,425  197,425 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 363  363  1,177  1,177 
Due from banks 80,994  80,994  49,630  49,630 
Loans to customers 1,148,278  1,148,278  588,182  588,182 
Investments available-for-sale 5,219  5,219  4,590  4,590 
Investments held to maturity 114,596  114,596  50,253  50,253 
        
Due to banks 525,398  525,398  238,047  238,047 
Customer accounts 779,541  779,541  552,168  552,168 
Subordinated debt 55,881  55,881  25,065  25,065 
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33. REGULATORY MATTERS 
 
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Group to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total (8%) and tier 1 capital (4%) to risk weighted assets. 
 
The ratio was calculated according to the principles employed by the Basle Committee by applying the 
following risk estimates to the assets and off-balance sheet commitments net of allowances for 
impairment losses. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 the Group’s total capital amount for Capital Adequacy purposes was  
GEL 344,934 thousand and tier 1 capital amount was GEL 276,391 thousand with ratios of 19% and 
15%, respectively. 
 
As at 31 December 2006 the Group’s total capital amount for Capital Adequacy purposes was  
GEL 143,812 thousand and tier 1 capital amount was GEL 110,611 thousand with ratios of 21% and 
16%, respectively. 
 
As at 31 December 2007 the Group included in the computation of Total capital for Capital adequacy 
purposes the subordinated debt received, limited to 50% of Tier 1 capital. In the event of bankruptcy 
or liquidation of the Group, repayment of this debt is subordinate to the repayments of the Group’s 
liabilities to all other creditors. 
 
 

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going 
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity 
balance.  
 
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes subordinated debt disclosed in 
Note 29, and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves 
and retained earnings as disclosed in consolidated statement of changes in equity. 
 
The Management Board reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As a part of this review, 
the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on 
recommendations of the Board, the Group balances its overall capital structure through the payment 
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. 
 
The Group’s overall capital risk management policy remains unchanged from 2006. 
 
 

35. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 
Management of risk is fundamental to the Group’s banking business and is an essential element of 
the Group’s operations.  The main risks inherent to the Group’s operations are those related to: 

 
 Credit exposures 

 
 Liquidity risk 

 
 Market risk 

 
The Group recognises that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk management processes in 
place. To enable this, the Group has established a risk management framework, whose main purpose 
is to protect the Group from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives. Through the risk 
management framework, the Group manages the following risks: 
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Credit risk 
 
The Group is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail 
to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 
 
Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority, by the Credit Committees 
and the Group’s Management Board.  Before any application is made by the Credit Committee, all 
recommendations on credit processes (borrower’s limits approved, or amendments made to loan 
agreements, etc.) are reviewed and approved by the branch risk-manager or the Risk Management 
Department.  Daily risk management is performed by the Head of Credit Departments and Branch 
Management. 
 
The Group structures the level of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk 
accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments.  Limits on the 
level of credit risk by a borrower and a product are approved semi annually by the Supervisory Board.  
The exposure to any one borrower including banks and brokers is further restricted by sub-limits 
covering on and off-balance sheet exposures which are set by the Credit Committee.  Actual exposures 
against limits are monitored daily. 
Where appropriate, and in the case of most loans, the Group obtains collateral and corporate and 
personal guarantees but a significant portion is personal lending, where no such facilities can be 
obtained.  Such risks are monitored on a continuous basis and subject to annual or more frequent 
reviews. 
 
Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of credit in the form of loans, guarantees or 
letters of credit.  The credit risk on off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as a probability 
of losses due to the inability of a counterparty to comply with the contractual terms and conditions. 
With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to a loss 
in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.  However, the likely amount of the loss is less 
than the total unused commitments since most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon 
customers maintaining specific credit standards.  The Group applies the same credit policy to the 
contingent liabilities as it does to the balance sheet financial instruments, i.e. the one based on the 
procedures for approving the grant of loans, using limits to mitigate the risk, and current monitoring.  
The Group monitors the term to maturity of off balance sheet contingencies because longer term 
commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than short-term commitments. 
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Maximum Exposure 
 
The Groups maximum exposure to credit risk varies significantly and is dependant on both 
individual risks and general market economy risks. 
 
The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance 
sheet financial assets. For financial assets in the balance sheet, the maximum exposure is equal to the 
carrying amount of those assets prior to any offset or collateral. For financial guarantees and other 
off balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount the Group 
would have to pay if the guarantee was called on or in the case of commitments, if the loan amount 
was called on. 

 
  

Maximum exposure 

 
31 December 

2007 
 31 December 

2006 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 363  1,177 
Due from banks 80,994  49,630 
Loans to customers 1,148,278  588,182 
Investments available-for-sale 5,219  4,590 
Investments held to maturity 114,596  50,253 
    
 
 
Financial assets are graded according to the internal rating systems and the current credit rating that 
has been issued by internationally regarded agencies - Standard and Poor’s, Fitch and Moody. Loans 
to customers, investments available-for-sale and investments held to maturity are rated based on the 
internal rating system. Due from and to banks are rated by the international rating agencies. The 
highest possible rating is AAA. Investment grade financial assets have ratings from AA to BB. 
Financial assets which have ratings lower than BB are classed as speculative grade. 
The following table details the credit ratings of financial assets held by the Group as at 31 December 
2007: 
 

  
 

AA+ 

 
 

AA 

 
 

AA- 

 
 

A+ 

 
 

A 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 
Due from banks 231 1,394 1,044 11,102 48,191 
Loans to customers - - - - - 
Investments available-for-sale - - - - - 
Investments held to maturity - - - - - 
      
 

  
BBB 

 
BB- 

 
B 

 
B- 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - 
Due from banks 607 - - - 
Loans to customers - 22,056 143,378 211,227 
Investments available-for-sale - 1,902 - 1,332 
Investments held to maturity - 114,596 - - 
     
 

  
 

CCC+ 

 
 

CCC 

 
 

CC 

 
Not  

rated 

Total at 31 
December 

2007 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - 363 363 
Due from banks - - - 18,425 80,994 
Loans to customers 266,156 93,008 88,453 324,000 1,148,278 
Investments available-for-sale 1,772 - - 213 5,219 
Investments held to maturity - - - - 114,596 
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As at 31 December 2006: 
  

 
AA+ 

 
 

AA 

 
 

AA- 

 
 

A+ 

 
 

A 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 
Due from banks 4,487 5,886 11,972 1,061 10,451 
Loans to customers - - - - - 
Investments available-for-sale - - - - - 
Investments held to maturity - - - - - 
      
 
 

  
 

BB+ 

 
 

BB- 

 
 

B 

 
 

B- 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - 
Due from banks 6,787 - 1,425 - 
Loans to customers - 3,386 79,789 97,235 
Investments available-for-sale - 412 - 569 
Investments held to maturity - 50,253 - - 
     
 
 

  
 

CCC+ 

 
 

CCC 

 
 

CC 

 
Not  

rated 

Total at 31 
December 

2006 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - 1,177 1,177 
Due from banks - - - 7,561 49,630 
Loans to customers 86,151 40,784 35,612 245,225 588,182 
Investments available-for-sale 1,772 - - 1,837 4,590 
Investments held to maturity - - - - 50,253 
      
 
 
The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its loans to customers and inter bank 
deposits. With regard to the loans to customers this risk exposure is concentrated within Georgia. 
The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness 
guidelines established by the Group’s risk management policy are not breached. 
 
The following table details the ageing of those financial assets that are past due but not impaired: 
 
As at 31 December 2007: 

 Financial assets past due but not 
impaired 

 

  
 

0-3 
months 

 
 

3-6  
months 

 
 

6 months 
to 1 year 

 
Greater 
than one 

year 

Total 

Loans to customers 9,560 1,145 454 338 11,497 
      
 
 
As at 31 December 2006: 

 Financial assets past due but not 
impaired 

 

  
 

0-3 
months 

 
 

3-6  
months 

 
 

6 months 
to 1 year 

 
Greater 
than one 

year 

Total 

Loans to customers 5,318 572 230 151 6,271 
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Geographical concentration 
 
The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (“ALMC”) exercises control over the risk in the 
legislation and regulatory arena and assesses its influence on the Group’s activity.  This approach 
allows the Group to minimize potential losses from the investment climate fluctuations in Georgia. 
The Group’s Management Board sets up country limits, which mainly applies to banks of the 
Commonwealth of Independent States and Baltic countries. 
 
The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is set out below: 
 

 Georgia  OECD 
countries 

 Non-OECD 
countries 

 31 December 
2007 
Total 

        
ASSETS        
Cash and balances with the National 

Bank of Georgia 183,833  -  -  183,833 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 135  228  -  363 
Due from banks 12,571  62,746  5,677  80,994 
Loans to customers 1,148,278  -  -  1,148,278 
Investments available-for-sale 5,219  -  -  5,219 
Investments held to maturity 114,596  -  -  114,596 
Goodwill 758  -  -  758 
Property, plant and equipment 

purchased for transfer into lease 326  -  -  326 
Property, plant and equipment 118,170  -  -  118,170 
Current income tax assets 6,808  -  -  6,808 
Other assets 40,793  -  -  40,793 
        
TOTAL ASSETS 1,631,487  62,974  5,677  1,700,138 
        
        
LIABILITIES        
Due to banks 29,585  476,905  18,908  525,398 
Customer accounts 779,541  -  -  779,541 
Deferred income tax liabilities 13,786  -  -  13,786 
Other liabilities 12,987  35  -  13,022 
Subordinated debt -  55,881  -  55,881 
        
TOTAL LIABILITIES 835,899  532,821  18,908  1,387,628 
        
NET POSITION 795,588  (469,847)  (13,231)   
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 Georgia  OECD 
countries 

 Non-OECD 
countries 

 31 December 
2006 
Total 

        
ASSETS        
Cash and balances with the National 

Bank of Georgia 196,307  1,118  -  197,425 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss -  1,177  -  1,177 
Due from banks 7,983  34,483  7,164  49,630 
Loans to customers 588,182  -  -  588,182 
Investments available-for-sale 4,590  -  -  4,590 
Investments held to maturity 50,253  -  -  50,253 
Property, plant and equipment 53,233  -  -  53,233 
Other assets 9,617  -  -  9,617 
        
TOTAL ASSETS 910,164  36,778  7,164  954,107 
        
        
LIABILITIES        
Due to banks 35,043  196,357  6,647  238,047 
Customer accounts 552,168  -  -  552,168 
Current income tax liabilities 1,800  -  -  1,800 
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,289  -  -  2,289 
Other liabilities 14,124  -  -  14,124 
Subordinated debt -  25,065  -  25,065 
        
TOTAL LIABILITIES 605,425  221,422  6,647  833,493 
        
NET POSITION 304,741  (184,644)  517   
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Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other financial 
commitments associated with financial instruments as they actually fall due. 
 
The ALMC controls these types of risks by means of maturity analysis, determining the Group’s strategy 
for the next financial period.  Current liquidity is managed by the Treasury Department, which deals in the 
money markets for current liquidity support and cash flow optimisation. 
 
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group performs daily monitoring of future expected cash flows on 
clients’ and banking operations, which is a part of assets/liabilities management process. The 
Management Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet deposit 
withdrawals and on the minimum level on interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to 
cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand. 
 
An analysis of the liquidity risk on balance sheet transactions is presented in the following table: 

 
As at 31 December 2007: 

 Up to  
1 month 

 1 month to 
3 months 

 3 month to 
1 year 

 1 year to 
5 years 

 Over  
5 years 

 Maturity 
undefined  

 31 December 
2007 
Total  

              
ASSETS              
              
Due from banks 75,140  -  4,846  1,008  -  -  80,994 
Loans to customers 60,889  72,856  269,416  567,124  177,993  -  1,148,278 
Investments held to maturity 62,872  19,671  32,053  -  -  -  114,596 

Total interest bearing 
assets 198,901  92,527  306,315  568,132  177,993  -  1,343,868 

              
Cash and balances with the 

National Bank of Georgia 94,445  -  -  -  -  89,388  183,833 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss -  -  -  228  -  135  363 
Investments available-for-sale -  -  -  -  -  5,219  5,219 
Goodwill -  -  -  -  -  758  758 
Property, plant and equipment 

purchased for transfer into 
lease -  -  -  -  -  326  326 

Property, plant and equipment -  -  -  -  -  118,170  118,170 
Current income tax assets -  -  6,808  -  -  -  6,808 
Other assets 12  38,363  189  -  -  2,229  40,793 

TOTAL ASSETS 293,358  130,890  313,312  568,360  177,993  216,225  1,700,138 

LIABILITIES              
Due to banks 107,883  24,593  132,359  260,563  -  -  525,398 
Customer accounts 223,486  65,578  185,421  39,748  1,392  -  515,625 
Subordinated debt -  -  -  23,268  32,613  -  55,881 

Total interest bearing 
liabilities 331,369  90,171  317,780  323,579  34,005  -  1,096,904 

Customer accounts 263,916  -  -  -  -  -  263,916 
Deferred income tax liabilities -  -  -  -  -  13,786  13,786 
Other liabilities 11,734  -  189  -  -  1,099  13,022 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 607,019  90,171  317,969  323,579  34,005  14,885  1,387,628 

Liquidity gap (313,661)  40,719  (4,657)  244,781  143,988     

Interest sensitivity gap (132,468)  2,356  (11,465)  244,553  143,988     

Cumulative interest 
sensitivity gap (132,468)  (130,112)  (141,577)  102,976  246,964     

Cumulative interest 
sensitivity gap as a 
percentage of total assets (7.8%)  (7.7%)  (8.3%)  6.1%  14.5%     
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As at 31 December 2006: 
 Up to  

1 month 
 1 month to 

3 months 
 3 month to 

1 year 
 1 year to 

5 years 
 Over  

5 years 
 Maturity 

undefined  
 31 

December 
2006 
Total  

              
ASSETS              
              
Due from banks 44,934  -  3,602  1,094  -  -  49,630 
Loans to customers 69,146  73,563  177,050  238,222  28,544  1,657  588,182 
Investments held to maturity 50,209  -  44  -  -  -  50,253 
              

Total interest bearing 
assets 164,289  73,563  180,696  239,316  28,544  1,657  688,065 

              
Cash and balances with 

the National Bank of 
Georgia 134,120  -  -  -  -  63,305  197,425 

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss -  -  14  1,163  -  -  1,177 

Investments available-for-sale -  -  -  -  -  4,590  4,590 
Property, plant and equipment -  -  -  -  -  53,233  53,233 
Other assets -  8,600  -  -  -  1,017  9,617 
              
TOTAL ASSETS 298,409  82,163  180,710  240,479  28,544  123,802  954,107 
              
              
LIABILITIES              
Due to banks 63,303  671  80,168  79,247  14,658  -  238,047 
Customer accounts 150,313  37,355  119,719  39,453  1,296  -  348,136 
Subordinated debt -  -  -  25,065  -  -  25,065 
              

Total interest bearing 
liabilities 213,616  38,026  199,887  143,765  15,954  -  611,248 

              
Customer accounts 204,032  -  -  -  -  -  204,032 
Current income tax liabilities -  1,800  -  -  -  -  1,800 
Deferred income tax liabilities -  -  -  -  -  2,289  2,289 
Other liabilities 7,114  -  -  -  -  7,010  14,124 
              
TOTAL LIABILITIES 424,762  39,826  199,887  143,765  15,954  9,299  833,493 
              
Liquidity gap (126,353)  42,337  (19,177)  96,714  12,590     
              
Interest sensitivity gap (49,327)  35,537  (19,191)  95,551  12,590     
              
Cumulative interest 

sensitivity gap (49,327)  (13,790)  (32,981)  62,570  75,160     
              
Cumulative interest 

sensitivity gap as  a 
percentage of total assets (5.2%)  (1.4%)  (3.5%)  6.6%  7.9%     

              
 
 
Substantially all of the Group’s interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities are at fixed rates 
of assets. 
 
Asset and liability maturity periods and the ability to replace interest bearing liabilities at an acceptance 
cost when they mature are crucial in determining the Group’s liquidity and its fluctuation of interest 
and exchange rates. 
 
The maturity of time deposits of individuals is based on contractual terms. However, time deposits 
can be withdrawn by individuals on demand. 
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Currently, a considerable part of customer deposits are repayable on demand. However, the fact  
that these deposits are diversified by the number and type of customers and the Group’s previous 
experience indicate that deposits are a stable and long-term source of financing for the Group. 
Moreover, the Group’s liquidity risk management includes estimation of actual estimated maturities 
for its current deposits. The estimation is based on statistical methods applied to historic information 
on fluctuations of customer accounts balances.   
 

 Up to  
1 month 

 1 month to 
3 months 

 3 months  
to  

1 year 

 1 year 
to  

5 years 

Over  
5 years 

Maturity 
undefined 

31 December 
2007 

Total 
 

Customer accounts 
analyzed based on 
expected withdrawal 
dates 161,918  76,611  235,071  304,549  1,392  -  779,541 

               
Liquidity gap (based on 

expected withdrawal 
dates for customer 
accounts) 11,823  29,686  (54,307)  (20,020)  143,988  -   

 
 

 Up to  
1 month 

 1 month to 
3 months 

 3 months  
to  

1 year 

 1 year 
to  

5 years 

Over  
5 years 

Maturity 
undefined 

31 December 
2006 

Total 
 

Customer accounts 
analyzed based on 
expected withdrawal 
dates 123,646  45,175  154,910  227, 140  1,296  -  552,168 

               
Liquidity gap (based on 

expected withdrawal 
dates for customer 
accounts) 104,346   34,517  (54,368)  (90,973)  12,590     

 
 
Market Risk 
 
Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency risk and other pricing risks to which the Group is 
exposed. There have been no changes as to the way the Group measures risk or to the risk it is 
exposed. 
 
The Group is exposed to interest rate risks as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and 
floating rates. The risk is managed by the Group maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and 
floating rate borrowings. 
 
The ALMC also manages interest rate and market risks by matching the Group’s interest rate position, 
which provides the Group with a positive interest margin.  The Department of Financial Control 
conducts monitoring of the Group’s current financial performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity 
to changes in interest rates and its influence on the Group’s profitability. 
 
The majority of the Group’s loan contracts and other financial assets and liabilities that bear interest are 
either variable or contain clauses enabling the interest rate to be changed at the option of the lender.  
The Group monitors its interest rate margin and consequently does not consider itself exposed to 
significant interest rate risk or consequential cash flow risk. 
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Cash flow interest rate risk 
 
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 
 
Interest rate risk is managed within the limit framework as established in accordance with the standards 
set by the Group. Interest rate risks are controlled via regular interest rate gap reporting. The Group 
does not perform hedging activities, thus no risk management policy for hedging transactions has 
been developed. 
 
The following table presents an analysis of interest rate risk and thus the potential of the Group for gain 
or loss. Effective average interest rates are presented by categories of financial assets and liabilities 
to determine interest rate exposure and effectiveness of the interest rate policy used by the Group. 
 
 31 December 2007 31 December 2006 
 GEL USD Other 

currencies 
 GEL USD Other 

currencies 
        
ASSETS        
Due from Banks 3,7% 2,5% 3,6%  1,3% 0,9% 2,1% 
Loans to customers 18,9% 16,0% 14,8%  16,2% 16,4% 14,4% 
Investments held to maturity 6,2% - -  11,2% - - 
        
LIABILITIES        
Due to Banks 13,4% 8,8% 7,5%  12,7% 9,5% 8,6% 
Customer accounts 6,8% 7,9% 5,6%  9,8% 7,2% 6,2% 
        
 
 
The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, which has been determined 
based on “reasonably possible changes in the risk variable”.  The level of these changes is determined 
by management and is contained within the risk reports provided to key management personnel.  
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Impact on net profit and equity: 
 

 As at 31 December 2007 As at 31 December 2006 

 Interest rate 
+2% 

Interest rate 
-2% 

Interest rate 
+2% 

Interest rate 
-2% 

Assets:     
Due from banks  and financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 1,321 (1,321) 831 (831) 
Loans to customers 6,849 (6,849) 3,933 (3,933) 
Investments held to maturity 2,007 (2,007) 964 (964) 
     
Liabilities:     
Due to banks and financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss (6,631) 6,878 (2,355) 2,355 
Customer accounts (5,613) 5,613 (4,136) 4,136 
Subordinated debt (398) 429 - - 
         
Net impact on profit before tax (2,465) 2,743 (763) 763 
 
 
Impact on shareholders equity: 

 As at 31 December 2007 As at 31 December 2006 

 Interest rate 
+2% 

Interest rate 
-2% 

Interest rate 
+2% 

Interest rate 
-2% 

Assets:     
Due from banks and financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss (87) 87 (60) 60 
Loans to customers (43,070) 43,070 (19,026) 19,026 
Investments held to maturity (351) 351 (40) 40 
     
Liabilities:     
Due to banks and financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss 4,834 (4,015) 3,118 (3,118) 
Customer accounts 2,574 (2,574) 2,697 (2,697) 
Subordinated debt 1,947 (1,477) 2,896 (2,896) 
         
Net impact on shareholders equity (35,056) 36,345 (10,415) 10,415 
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Currency risk 

 
Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes 
in foreign exchange rates.  The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign 
currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. 
 
The ALMC controls currency risk by management of the open currency position on the estimated basis 
of Georgian Lari devaluation and other macroeconomic indicators, which gives the Group an 
opportunity to minimize losses from significant currency rates fluctuations toward its national currency.  
The Treasury Department performs daily monitoring of the Group’s open currency position with the 
aim to match the requirements of the National Bank of Georgia. 
 
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk is presented in the table below: 
 
As at 31 December 2007: 

 GEL  USD  
USD 1 = 

GEL 1.592 

 EUR  
EUR 1 = 

GEL 2.332 

 Other 
currency 

 31 December 
2007  
Total  

          
ASSETS          
Cash and balances with the National 

Bank of Georgia 63,511  113,124  6,560  638  183,833 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 135  228  -  -  363 
Due from banks 10,056  10,067  59,501  1,370  80,994 
Loans to customers 285,252  850,620  12,406  -  1,148,278 
Investments available-for-sale 5,219  -  -  -  5,219 
Investments held to maturity 114,596  -  -  -  114,596 
Goodwill 758  -  -  -  758 
Property, plant and equipment purchased 

for transfer into lease 326  -  -  -  326 
Property, plant and equipment 118,170  -  -  -  118,170 
Current income tax assets 6,808  -  -  -  6,808 
Other assets 25,232  15,206  355  -  40,793 

TOTAL ASSETS 630,063  989,245  78,822  2,008  1,700,138 

          
LIABILITIES          
Due to banks 18,195  487,502  19,701  -  525,398 
Customer accounts 233,882  441,566  102,398  1,695  779,541 
Deferred income tax liabilities 13,786  -  -  -  13,786 
Other liabilities 10,699  2,247  76  -  13,022 
Subordinated debt -  55,881  -  -  55,881 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 276,562  987,196  122,175  1,695  1,387,628 

OPEN BALANCE SHEET POSITION 353,501  2,049  (43,353)  313   
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Derivative financial instruments and spot contracts 
 
Fair value of derivative financial instruments and spot contracts are included in the currency analysis 
presented above and the following table presents further analysis of currency risk by types of derivative 
financial instruments and spot contracts as at 31 December 2007: 
 

  USD  
USD 1 =  

GEL 1.592 

  31  
December  

2007  
Total  

      
Accounts receivable on spot and 

derivative contracts  228   228 

NET SPOT AND DERIVATIVE 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
POSITION  228    

TOTAL OPEN POSITION  228    

 
 
As at 31 December 2006: 

 GEL  USD  
USD 1 = 

GEL 1.714 

 EUR  
EUR 1 = 

GEL 2.256 

 Other 
currency 

 31 December 
2006 
Total  

          
ASSETS          
Cash and balances with the National 

Bank of Georgia 98,042  94,672  4,340  371  197,425 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss -  1,177  -  -  1,177 
Due from banks 127  30,992  18,138  373  49,630 
Loans to customers 110,278  463,349  14,555  -  588,182 
Investments available-for-sale 4,590  -  -  -  4,590 
Investments held to maturity 50,253  -  -  -  50,253 
Property, plant and equipment 53,233  -  -  -  53,233 
Other assets 5,645  3,701  271  -  9,617 

TOTAL ASSETS 322,168  593,891  37,304  744  954,107 
          
          
LIABILITIES          
Due to banks 31,044  204,353  2,650  -  238,047 
Customer accounts 148,961  363,290  38,794  1,123  552,168 
Current income tax liabilities 1,800  -  -  -  1,800 
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,289  -  -  -  2,289 
Other liabilities 8,107  5,039  932  46  14,124 
Subordinated debt -  25,065  -  -  25,065 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 192,201  597,747  42,376  1,169  833,493 

OPEN BALANCE SHEET POSITION 129,967  (3,856)  (5,072)  (425)   

 
 
As at 31 December 2006: 

  USD  
USD 1 =  

GEL 1.714 

   31  
December  

2006  
Total  

       
Accounts receivable on spot and 

derivative contracts  1,177    1,177 

NET SPOT AND DERIVATIVE 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
POSITION  1,177     

TOTAL OPEN POSITION  1,177     
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Currency risk Sensitivity 
 
The following table details the Group’s Sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the USD 
against the GEL. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to 
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in 
foreign currency exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency 
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the period for a 10% change 
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign 
operations within the Group where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the 
currency of the lender or the borrower.  
 
 

 As at 31 December 2007 As at 31 December 2006 

 GEL/USD 
+10% 

GEL/USD 
-10% 

GEL/USD 
+10% 

GEL/USD 
-10% 

     
Impact on profit or loss 1,860 (1,860) (745) 745 
     
Impact on equity 1,488 (1,488) (596) 596 
 

 
Limitations of sensitivity analysis 
The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption while other assumptions 
remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It 
should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts should not 
be interpolated or extrapolated from these results. 
 
The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group’s assets and liabilities are 
actively managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Group may vary at the time that any 
actual market movement occurs. For example, the Group’s financial risk management strategy aims 
to manage the exposure to market fluctuations. As investment markets move past various trigger 
levels, management actions could include selling investments, changing investment portfolio 
allocation and taking other protective action. Consequently, the actual impact of a change in the 
assumptions may not have any impact on the liabilities, whereas assets are held at market value on 
the balance sheet. In these circumstances, the different measurement bases for liabilities and assets 
may lead to volatility in shareholder equity.  
 
Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements 
to demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Group’s view of possible near-term market 
changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty; and the assumption that all interest rates move in 
an identical fashion 
 
Price risk 
 
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in 
market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security or its 
issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market.  The Group is exposed to price risks 
of its products which are subject to general and specific market fluctuations. 
 
The Group manages price risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise from 
adverse changes in market conditions and establishing and maintaining appropriate stop-loss limits 
and margin and collateral requirements.  With respect to undrawn loan commitments the Group is 
potentially exposed to a loss of an amount equal to the total amount of such commitments.  However, 
the likely amount of a loss is less than that, since most commitments are contingent upon certain 
conditions set out in the loan agreements. 
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